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This Form 10-KSB contains forward-looking statensamithin the meaning of the federal securities lalese forward-looking statements
are necessarily based on certain assumptions arglibject to significant risks and uncertaintigdsede forward-looking statements are based
on management's expectations as of the date harabthe Company does not undertake any respadhstbilupdate any of these statements
in the future. Actual future performance and resatiuld differ from that contained in or suggedigdhese forward-looking statements as a
result of factors set forth in this Form 10-KSBduding those sections hereof incorporated by esfee from other filings with the Securities
and Exchange Commission), in particular as sehforthe "Management's Discussion and AnalysisResllts of Operation” under Item 6.

In this form 10-KSB references to "Cyberlux”, "tGempany", "we," "us," and "our" refer to Cyberluxi@oration.
PART |

ITEM 1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

OVERVIEW

We are a Nevada corporation that was incorporateday 17, 2000. We were founded to design, devetaorket and sell advanced lighting
systems that utilize light emitting diodes as ilination elements. White diodes are a relatively pé@nomenon that offer major advances in
illumination technology. Our diodes consume 929 lexsergy than incandescent counterparts to prachroparable light output. In
electrochemical (battery powered) applications thininution of energy consumption positions oghling solutions as more durable and
reliable than other interim lighting alternativés standard alternating current electrical appiwa, the calculated life of LEDs as lighting
elements is over 20 years versus 750 hours foitibadl incandescent light bulbs. These exceptigesformance characteristics, diminutive
energy consumption and extended life, have promghitede implementation in traffic lights and autometbrake lights, but have not yet
significantly occurred in our area of focus, diodlaimination (tm). Diodal illumination is the prodtion of light through the use of white lig
emitting diodes. A light emitting diode is a chealicompound that produces a visible light whenlantgcal current is applied. This
production of light through a diode is contrastathvight from a typical light bulb, in which light produced as a by-product of a burning
filament contained within a vacuum globe. The diades 92% less energy to produce comparable bghit of a traditional light bulb.

To address the tremendous opportunity in the $ilidbgeneral lighting market, we have developdiha of LED lighting products and
fixtures for residential, commercial, military ahdmeland security markets, including kitchen amdet task lighting and emergency lighting
products. We design and engineer products that &eleipnology advancements from semiconductor matwiers, including Cree, Inc., for
use by the general public and military.

We have created breakthrough solid-state ligh#e@nology that provides energy efficient and céfsictive lighting solutions. Several
products are designed to address emergenciesasymwer outages and critical security lightingdse®©ther products bring "heatless" light
into the home for closets, cabinets, bookcasesandters. The solid-state semiconductors, tradesddy Cyberlux as diodal(TM) lighting
elements, consume 92 percent less energy than miowval incandescent lighting elements and perffmmmore than 10 years in contrast to
750 hours for traditional light bulbs.

With the exception of our initial Home Safety Lighroduct (the first generation of our current EvefOM) product), 2005 marked the first
year for all of our current products and the firsar of significant revenues. With established dexeloping sales channels and a robust .
of products now available for the market, we bealitivat we are poised to seize significant oppotigsin the growing solid-state lighting
market in 2006 and beyond.

MARKET OPPORTUNITY

Light Emitting Diodes, or LEDs, are leading to adamental shift in the lighting industry, creatmgrket competition in ways that challenge
traditional players, including General Electric.ig Bhift represents a similar evolution driven blidsstate technology in semiconductors and
TVs. What has been a vertically-integrated indudtigninated by giants is now becoming more "horiabhtvith layers that resemble the
structure of the computer industry. The cost of sE®decreasing as technology advances are made,tiv brightness and quality of light
produced by LEDs is increasing. Opportunities anerging for us to develop next-generation lightiodutions and accelerate adoption of
LED lighting, as new market prospects are unfolding



According to market research firm iSuppli, the neror LEDs for general illumination applicationdivexpand to $875 million in 2010,
rising at a Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) &f35percent from $94 million in 2004. By 2010, LE®# have grown to account foi
significant portion of the worldwide general illunaition market, which amounted to $12 billion in 200

This shift in the lighting industry over the nexd fears will cause a fundamental change in thelighting is installed, maintained and
operated, both in terms of energy efficiency amyivity. For example, our Aeon(TM) product for undabinet and task lighting comes w
a 15-year guarantee on the life of the lightingredat. That is fundamentally different from anythocansumers have experienced before. It
represents a trend that will include a transfornohtighting fixtures along with a change to senmdactor solid-state lighting elements to
replace incandescent and fluorescent bulbs.

Energy efficiency is also a market driver. The @diStates Congress recently passed the "Next Gemekéghting Initiative Act", which
recognizes the remarkable beneficial impact ofdsstate lighting on the global economy. The Actestdn its preamble, "...it is in the
economic and energy security interest of the Urfiades to encourage the development of white &gfitting diodes by providing financial
assistance to firms, or a consortium of firms, angporting research organizations in the lightingedlopment sector.”" We began our research
and development activity in practical applicatidmisinorganic white light emitting diodes years def the Senate Bill was introduced.

LED solid-state lighting technology and productdi@ss a key component in the Federal Energy Patiopted in August 2005. The Energy
Policy was supported by the National Electrical €actors Association - the voice of the $100 biliadustry responsible for bringing
lighting, power, and communications to buildingsl @@emmunities across the United States.

Through $14.5 billion in new tax credits and deéhred, the policy emphasizes a renewed commitmeiniiimvation to supplement a
revitalization of the nation's overburdened eleefrinfrastructure, and encourages energy effigieand modernization in federal and private
buildings. By addressing incentives for the proshucaind use of alternative energy sources, inctyidolid-state LED lighting technology, the
federal government will help drive the adoptiomekt-generation lighting solutions.

PRINCIPAL PRODUCTS
EMERGENCY, SECURITY AND COMMERCIAL LIGHTING PRODUCT S

Every time a hurricane or ice storm hits, causimdeapread power outages that last for days, weeksaths, the absence of realistic
emergency lighting solutions becomes more evidemt. need can strike at any time. The power gridriaiand subsequent power outage
which darkened the Midwest and spread to Northeastaited States and parts of Canada in Augus0082dramatized that nature is not the
only culprit. The term "emergency lighting" is tgpily applied to short-term evacuation lights irbfixi buildings which perform for 60 to 90
minutes to allow occupants to flee a burning buidiElectrical power grid failure is a far diffetggroblem than that of evacuating a building.
We have solved the problem of grid failure blackowith long-term emergency lighting.

RELIABRIGHT(TM)

The Reliabright(TM) products provide 80 hours dafjht light from one battery charge. The systencisvated by proprietary sensors that
detect a loss of power in the building's electrgyatem. This breakthrough in light managementemabled us to apply our technology and
develop new products to solve problems in the partation industry, in heatless lighting solutidashomeowners, and security solutions for
the U.S. Military.

In 2005, we installed the Reliabright(TM) emergeligiting system in the Emergency Situation RoorKiags Park High School, Kings

Park, New York. This pilot program demonstratesgbtential to use LED solid-state lighting to preppachools and other shelters throughout
the county to provide assistance to communitighénaftermath of natural disasters, terrorist &aelectric grid failures and any other
calamity that can cause widespread electricitykdats.



In a similar pilot project, we installed a solidi& semiconductor lighting system in the emergenagagement "war room" for the City of
Cleveland. That project was in response to the spdead power blackouts in 2003.

MILITARY PORTABLE BOUNDARY SECURITY SYSTEM

Reliabright(TM) products also represent the fouimtatechnology for many of our lighting productsdevelopment, including an innovative
Portable Covert lllumination System for securityhtiing for the U.S. Military. We are working witho@current Technologies Corporation
(CTC) to develop an LED solution for a lightweigptrtable lighting system to provide security faSUAIr Force aircraft.

The same technology can be used for commerciaéaretgency response needs, such as quickly prowdohespread lighting solutions in
shelters during events similar to the probleméiatNew Orleans Superdome in the aftermath of Hamed<atrina.

EVERON(TM)

The EverOn(TM) product is the latest in solid-staghting technology and provides more than 500rkani light at the low, amber setting
using four AA batteries and is 90 percent more gyefficient than conventional lanterns or incarges flashlights. The EverOn(TM) is
packaged in our patented and field-proven hand-¢lifgtical parabolic reflector product design, piding a practical, portable emergency
lighting solution for every consumer who has expeced the unease and inconvenience of power outagsigned originally to provide
consumers with portable, long-lasting, emergengiyting during the hurricane season, the new Everlip{s a sturdy, virtually
indestructible, lighting product that provides o&&0 hours of light on the low, amber setting, 60is of comfortable room-filling light on
the medium setting and over 30 hours of intensahbwhite light on the highest setting, all irf @énch by 3.5 inch by 2.4 inch package.

Emergency Management officials in Collier Countlg.Felied on the Home Safety Light, the previoassion of the EverOn(TM), as an
emergency lighting source in hurricane sheltersfangictims needing medical assistance in therafégh of Hurricane Dennis in July 2005.
In August, Collier County officials announced thitey have listed the EverOn(TM) Emergency Lighbéoa standard product in their
disaster relief inventory.

The EverOn(TM) product builds on the demonstratertsss of our original Home Safety Light produdtjck was launched on QVC in
October of 2003 and generated over $8,000 per minwgales. EverOn(TM), which is over 40 percenterefficient and 30 percent brighter
than the original Home Safety Light product, is @sted to be sold on QVC in the near future.
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RELYON(TM)

The RelyOn(TM) ultra-bright light with power plaigta new product designed to provide homeownerganféssionals with a portable, long-
lasting work and emergency light. RelyOn(TM) is fhist product to use Cree's latest 3-watt sshigte lighting technology, providing supe!
performance over conventional lighting products

. Delivering more than 60 hours of light on a sengharge, the RelyOn(TM) can be recharged fromlboudlet or a vehicle charging port
(cigarette lighter port) using included AC and D@wgr adapters. As a power plant, the RelyOn(TM)reaharge mobile phones and other
12-volt DC devices through a built-in power port.

The powerful, solid-state semiconductor light hdadfuring three Cree 3-watt XLamp(TM) 7090 highveo white LEDs, provides over 250
lumens and may be focused as an intense spotkgimh lor adjusted to generate a blanket of lightlamd a table lamp. The intensity of the
light can be adjusted for both spotlight and flogill settings. A digital display shows the remagnirours of light available on the existing
charge.

RESIDENTIAL LIGHTING
AEON

The Aeon products bring solid-state lighting irtte residential and commercial market for use iset®, cabinet interiors, bookcases, under-
cabinet lighting and kitchen counters. The Aeok t&sd accent lighting products are made with sslate, light-emitting diodes and do not
require bulbs. The result is a product that is tesiance-free, "cool to the touch" with long-lastamgergy-efficiency, including a 15-year
guarantee that the lighting elements will not neeldde replaced.

It can be set on low, medium and high levels aérisity, and because of its sleek, thin fixturee@uires a much less intrusive trim line rather
than the thicker trim line that is needed to blaatirect view of a fluorescent light.

We believe that Aeon has the potential to becoradatorite of kitchen and interior designers duédaemarkable performance
characteristics of several optional shades of wigtd, three levels of light intensity and its iido the touch” safety feature. The choice of
electrical connections (plug-in, hard-wired or battpowered) adds to the fixture's flexibility.

SPECIALTY LIGHTING
KEON(TM) KEYCAP

The KeOn(TM) KeyCap is the practical lighting sadut for every consumer who carries keys. Each patelieOn(TM) is a sturdy elastic
surround that fits standard key heads and delavénsght beam of light down the key shaft. Whemiigiaturized button is depressed, the
KeOn(TM) KeyCap directs light precisely into théended keyhole or other targeted surfaces.

DISTRIBUTION METHODS OF OUR PRODUCTS

Consistent with our sales objectives, the reliabémufacture of proprietary component parts andnalslseof finished products required
exacting coordination of resources to provide diedaivorking drawings to tool manufacturers for otjen molded parts and optics; precise
circuitry diagrams to receive diodes, resistors e@aquhcitors into the electronics platform; soudmntification for volume supplies of batteries
and diodes; packaging considerations for presemntati product and corresponding dimensions of égontant's for shipping and display; and
an experienced contract assembly organization avitaxtensive infrastructure capable of collatiod awventory of all component parts.

During the Fall of 2000, we identified Shelby Cou@ommunity Services, Shelbyville, lllinois, as@tract manufacture and assembly
organization that was positioned to meet our regménts. Shelby County Community Services has odeccade of successful performance
on behalf of Fortune 100 companies and represehéeduality of management, performance and fisedilility that we sought to employ in
the production process.



We have a Proprietary Product Manufacturing Agregméth Shelby County Community Services that pdeg for Shelby County
Community Services to assemble, test, package hoase finished good inventory, palletize and st@ppurchase orders for shipment FOB
Shelbyville. In the Summer of 2004, we renewedrelationship with Shelby County Community Serviceselby County Community
Services will continue to serve as the warehouaimdydistribution center for our products, which @arée manufactured abroad. Shelby
County Community Services coordinates customs padécand manages incoming inventories.

Our internet site is serviced by Shelby County Camity Services through a fulfillment operationsegmnent whereby Shelby County
Community Services receives a daily batched summfinternet sales through an email link establishg us and United Parcel Service. -
software validates the address of the customerdnides shipping mode (next day, two day or grourmnputes shipping and handling
charges then prints the appropriate waybill atsthipping office of Shelby County Community Serviceackages are shipped within 24 hours
of receipt of the email summary of business forgheceding day's orders. Shelby County Communityi€es coordinates materials

inventory with our approved vendors based uponhmasge orders or blanket orders for products.

Our internal engineering staff provides detailedkireg drawings for injection molded parts to tochmufacturers. Similarly, our proprietary
circuitry design is managed by our internal engimgestaff, and we have contracted with Luxhall.Laéf Ningbo, China, which manufactul
our product components and ships them to SCCS wthengroduct components are assembled, packageeheused and shipped. The ini
production capacity at SCCS is 80,000 product yrétsmonth, which can be increased by 50% withua filonth lead time to undertake
expansion of facilities.

We have engaged Philippe Becker Design, Inc. tdyre, coordinate and manage our corporate and grathrketing activities. Philippe
Becker Design, Inc . has broad-based experiendevaloping the corporate and product marketingireduo launch technology companies.
The role of Philippe Becker Design, Inc is to i@ marketing, sales, product and customer suptixities and messages to optimize
customer acquisition and retention.. Philippe Bedkesign, Inc serves as the liaison for the preparand delivery of selling materials to t
individual selling firms and an information condtotmanagement for production and finished goodsritory issues.

We have retained Largemouth Communications, Inouagublic relations firm responsible for the s#gic and tactical communications for
Cyberlux. Largemouth Communications, Inc. is a reting communications firm that assists Cyberluggmmunicating to our target
audiences of customers, prospects, the mediaypudikers, employees, opinion leaders and shareloldeggemouth Communications, Inc.
draws on a wide array of disciplines, fueled bgtstgy and creativity, to aid Cyberlux in achieving tactical and strategic goals.

We have retained two technology product sales fi@nsart Products, Inc., Westwood, NJ, and Dugg@rdwvn, Chicago, IL, to represent
our product line over the range of channels addcefs distribution. The individual firms have besglected based upon established
relationships with certain commercial and retadmhels and proven track records of sales to thogenels.

REGULATION

Our advertising and sales practices concerningpmducts are regulated by the Federal Trade Cononissid state consumer protection
laws. Such regulations include restrictions onrttaner that we promote the sale of our productsb®lieve we are in material compliance
with such regulations. We believe that we will ibeato comply in all material respects with lawslaagulations governing the conduct of
business operations in general. We are not awasaypending government regulations that may aeWeedfect our business.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES

We anticipate continuing to incur research and bgreent expenditures in connection with the develept of our Wireless Lighting System
during the next twelve months.



These projected expenditures are dependent upogeoerating revenues and obtaining sources ofdingrin excess of our existing capital
resources. There is no guarantee that we will beessful in raising the funds required or genegatavenues sufficient to fund the projected
costs of research and development during the nefv¢ months.

COMPETITION

The lighting and illumination industry is extremalgmpetitive. Our ReliaBright(TM) products addréss long-term blackout emergency
lighting needs with battery powered (60 hours) tiigdy solutions for hotels, hospitals, adult caretees and high-rise apartments, and long-
term evacuation lighting solutions for commerciailtings. The ReliaBright(TM) products are compeéty positioned as a price-
competitive, new technology introduction into armsérg product category, where General ElectricdiBe and Lithonia are the key
competitors with products that use traditional ligh technology. The Aeon "Task & Accent" lightipgoducts address residential closet
lighting, interior cabinet accent lighting and undabinet counter lighting as heatless laagn (75,000 hours of life) lighting solutions five
homeowner. This unique lighting resource for catonakers, contractors and do-it-yourselfers offareé levels of light from soft white
diodal(TM) elements that are cool to the touch easly to install. The Aeon products are competiipalsitioned as a premium priced new
technology introduction into an existing productegcgry, where General Electric, Philips and Sed Gghting are the key competitors with
products that use traditional lighting technologfe believe that our lighting solistate technology will provide a 40 to 60 perceduiion ir
maintenance costs for property managers throughaement of walkway, corridor or landscape lightglgments and 68 percent reduction in
energy costs for those fixtures.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

We have one trademark registered with the UniteteStPatent & Trademark Office and have filed egghér applications that are currently
being processed. The marks that we have filed amdéeived trademark registration for are as folow

Serial or Registration or
Trademark  Registration No. Filing Date

EVERON Ser. No. 78804638 February 1, 2006

KEON Ser. No. 78804631 February 1, 2006

RELYON Ser. No. 78803400 January 31, 2006

FOCUSON Ser. No. 78803391 January 31, 2006

CAMPLIGHT  Ser. No. 78483758 September 15, 20 04

SENSORBRIGHT Ser. No. 78483755 September 15, 2004
FOCALBRIGHT Ser. No. 78432845 June 10, 2004 RELIABRT Ser. No. 78421509 May 19, 2004
CYBERLUX Reg. No. 2757137 August 26, 2003

EMPLOYEES

We currently have 11 full time employees. Our erypks are primarily at the executive level basecuqo role in coordination of outsource
contracts for manufacturing and other productiomsiaerations. Currently, there exist no organizdmbt agreements or union agreements
between us and our employees. We have employmestrmagnts with the following executive officers: RdohF. Evans, Chairman and CEO,
Mark D. Schmidt, President and COO, Alan H. Ninnantenior Vice President and John W. Ringo, Secretad Corporate Counsel. We
believe that our relations with our employees aredy

ITEM 2. DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

We maintain our principal office at 4625 Creekst@nae, Suite 100, Research Triangle Park, Durhidorth Carolina 27703. Our telephone
number at that office is (919) 474-9700 and ousifade number is (919) 474-9712. We lease 2,40%sxfeet of office space. The lease
expires on December 31, 2008. The monthly ren8j4%¥, subject to an annual cost of living incre&¥e believe that our current office
space and facilities are sufficient to meet ouseré needs and do not anticipate any difficultyisag alternative or additional space, as
needed, on terms acceptable to us. We maintainitestag www.cyberlux.com and www.luxSel.com. Thimimation contained on those
websites is not deemed to be a part of this amegairt.



ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we may become involved in vasitawsuits and legal proceedings which arise irotidénary course of business.
However, litigation is subject to inherent uncentgs, and an adverse result in these or otheensatiay arise from time to time that may
harm our business. Except as disclosed below, evewarently not aware of any such legal proceedimgdaims that we believe will have,
individually or in the aggregate, a material adeeaffect on our business, financial condition oeraping results.

COURT: CIRCUIT COURT OF THE TWELFTH JUDICIAL DISTRI  CT IN AND FOR SARASOTA COUNTY, FLORIDA.
CASE NAME: CYBERLUX CORPORATION, PLAINTIFF V. ERVIN J. RACHWAL, LIGHT
TECHNOLOGY, INC., SAFE-LIGHT INDUSTRIES, LLC A/K/A  JFER INNOVATIONS GROUP, LLC,
JAMES MEYER AND JOHN FLEMING.

On April 18, 2001, we filed a civil complaint agatriight Technology, Inc., Ervin J. Rachwal, SafgHt Industries, LLC a/k/a JFER
Innovations Group, LLC, James Meyer and John Flgralteging fraud, breach of contract, monies lerisappropriation of trade secrets,
conspiracy and sought injunctive relief againstdb&endants to prevent them from misappropriatiade secrets as well as to recover
monetary damages On May 11, 2001, the Court gramtethporary injunction against the DefendantsJ@re 5, 2001, the Defendants filed
their Answer denying the allegations of the Commpland filed a counterclaim alleging fraud, viatatiof Trade Secret Act, breach of conti
and money lent.

On January 18, 2002, the Court granted the Defaadsliotion to Dissolve the Injunction. On Janua8y 2002, we filed a Motion for
Rehearing or Clarification of the Motion to DisselA hearing on our Motion for Rehearing or Claation of the Motion to Dissolve was
scheduled for March 18, 2002, but was cancellethbyCourt and has not been rescheduled. In acomedeith Florida's Rules of Civil
Procedure, when a Motion to dissolve is granted,dhder is stayed and the injunction remains factfuntil the Court rules on a Motion for
Rehearing or Clarification of the Motion to DisselvT herefore, the injunction still remains in effaatil the Court rules on this Motion.

BACKGROUND:

We came into contact with Light Technology, Incddachwal in early 2000. We were seeking someottetive knowledge and expertise to
assist us in the development of an emergency ligimg white LEDs. Light Technology, Inc. and Rachrepresented that they had such
knowledge and expertise and could finalize the gweent of our emergency light by September 3002@9that we could begin
manufacturing and selling the emergency light by&ober 2000. Rachwal and Light Technology, Ina aldvised us that we could acquire
all the assets of Light Technology, Inc. and tights to Light Technology, Inc.'s flashlight whics@used white LEDs provided Rachwal v
made an officer and director of our company as a®lbe in charge of design work.

In order to evaluate this offer, we requested actiog and financial records to verify the repreaéinns of Light Technology, Inc. and
Rachwal and to attempt to ascertain the value giit Technology, Inc.. Despite repeated attemptghtiTechnology, Inc. and Rachwal were
unable to provide adequate, verifiable financiabrds. Nonetheless, in order allow Light Technoldgg. and Rachwal to proceed with the
development of the emergency light in order to nileetNovember shipping deadline, we entered iritetter of Intent with Light
Technology, Inc. on June 12, 2000. This Lettemdémt also contained a confidentiality clause potibg our interests. Pursuant to the Letter
of Intent we paid Light Technology, Inc. $100,000develop a prototype of an emergency storm lighit@ossible acquisition of the assets of
Light Technology, Inc. based upon an independealuation of the of the worth of the assets. Wecdthe Sarasota CPA firm, Kerkering,
Barbario & Co. to independently do an evaluatiothef Light Technology, Inc. assets. Kerkering, Baid came to the conclusion that Light
Technology, Inc. had no verifiable assets of arlyezaFurthermore, Light Technology, Inc. never deped and produced a working mode
the emergency storm light. We incurred meetingtaakl expenses of $36,401 associated with Liglkehfelogy, Inc. during the period June
through December 2000. $43,699 was expended fdtetiag expense in anticipation of the promisedwdeyi of the light. During this time,
we also came into contact with Safe-Light. We hisduksions with Safe-Light regarding a potentiguasition, however, there was never a
definitive agreement concerning our acquisitioisafe-Light. We also made loans to defendant Sajbtlin the amount of $13,188 to assist
in development and marketing of its products bagexh the discussions that the assets of Safe-lightd be acquired by us.
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We instituted our complaint against the defendaititsn we learned, through a local newspaper attigeLight Technology, Inc. and Safe-
Light had merged and had developed an emergenritly ide had confidentiality rights with both compesi The defendants breached their
contracts with us by misappropriating trade seaetswe are seeking monetary damages as well tiyenelief to prevent them from
capitalizing on the misappropriation of trade sexrBespite the news article in which Rachwal ameed that Light Technology, Inc. had
developed an emergency light, he did not objetiéanjunction stating that he did not have sutiglet. Our injunction prohibits the
defendants from claiming rights to our Storm Lighteprints.

There is no similarity between our product, the ldBafety Light, and Light Technology, Inc.'s pragdéaown as the Pal Light. Our product
has 10 diodes and provides a blanket of lightgbtlup a room in the event of a power outage. TigatLTechnology, Inc. product is a small
flashlight that uses one diode.

Light Technology, Inc. claims that we breacheddbsetract terms of the letter of intent and joinbiege agreement by failing to maintain
confidential disclosed to us and intentionally thsing confidential information to third partiesegpite receiving $100,000 from us,
defendants claim we failed to fund the developnodihe light and claim that we owe them in excefls81®0,000 by breaching the letter of
intent and joint venture agreement. Further, dedetgiclaim we failed to pay fees set forth in therising agreement notwithstanding that the
condition precedent to pay said fees (the succlkessfapletion of a private placement by us, whictswabsequently withdrawn due to market
conditions). Defendant Safe-Light alleges that aguested that they assist us in raising fundinghfemproducts discussed in the complaint.
We actually loaned them funds for the developmétt&ir barricade light.

We intend to fully prosecute our claims and actiagainst the Defendants. We deny the Defendamtgaiibns alleged against us in their
counterclaim. This litigation is still in the disoery stage and the ultimate outcome cannot prgsbattietermined. We have incurred
approximately $25,000 in legal fees and $15,00@ter litigation-related expenses in connectiorhliis case, however, we have not spent
any money this year in connection with this casedwowe intend at this point in spending significamounts of money going forward since
the case has not been active for the last few years

On November 17, 2005, we filed a Motion Notice é$missal based on lack of prosecution. On Januay2@06, the Court issued a Final
Order of Dismissal.

CASE NO. O5CV3704 - DISTRICT COURT, CITY AND COUNTY OF DENVER, STATE OF COLORADO

On May 17, 2005, Zykronix, Inc., a Colorado corgmna, filed a complaint against us and our Predidgiark Schmidt, in the District Court,
City and County of Denver, State of Colorado (Qdse O5CV3704) claiming damages in the amount ofl$243.75 and costs for breach of
contract, unjust enrichment and fraud by Mark SclinWe previously entered into a contract with Zykix for them to produce prototypes
for several of our new products, which we belidweytnever satisfactorily completed.

On June 22, 2005, we filed our Answer and Courdérchgainst Zykronix, claiming damages and costhéramount of $2,850,000 for
breach of contract, unjust enrichment and negliggatepresentation. At the same time, Mark Schffiielf a Motion to Dismiss since
Zykronix failed to adequately plead a claim foruta On August 24, 2005, the Motion to Dismiss wasidd. The case is currently in
discovery. We believe that their claims are withagrit and we will vigorously defend these claims.

On January 26, 2006, the parties signed a Mutul@aRe and Settlement Agreement amd StipulatioDigmissal with Prejudice. Under the
terms of the Mutual Release and Settlement, we Pgkdonix $50,000 and Zykronix returned our profueg and design files.

On February 6, 2006, the Court entered an Orddbigmissal with Prejudice, with Reservation of Lied Jurisdiction for the purpose of
enforcing the Mutual Release and Settlement Agreende terms of the Mutual Release and SettletAgréaement have been met to the
satisfaction of both parties.



INDEX NUMBER: 602727/05- SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK, COUNTY OF NEW YORK

On July 27, 2005, Alliance Care Services, Inc.allliance Advisors, a New York corporation, filaccomplaint against us in the Supreme
Court of the State of New York, County of New Yodkaiming damages in the amount of not less th@9&®O0 and costs for breach of
contract, breach of duty of good faith and fairlogpand unjust enrichment. We entered into anement with Alliance Advisors in October
2003 for services to perform, including introduatio investors for the raising of equity capitakixchange for payment of certain fees. We
filed our answer on October 4, 2005 denying alineta This case is currently in discovery. We bedi¢vat their claims are without merit and
we intend to vigorously defend these claims.

STATEMENT OF CLAIM - ARBITRATION BEFORE THE NATIONA L ASSOCIATION OF SECURITIES DEALERS, INC.

On October 21, 2005, Greenfield Capital Partner€ ffiled a statement of claim against us in arbibrabefore the National Association of
Securities Dealers, Inc. Greenfield claims damageiscosts in the amount of $107,000 for breactoofract, fraud, fraudulent concealment
and misrepresentation. We entered into an agreenitimGreenfield Capital Partners LLC in June 2@@4ct as financial advisor in
connection with and equity offering. We believetttieeir claims are without merit and we intend igorously defend these claims.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None.



PART Il
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKH OLDER MATTERS
Our common stock is quoted on the OTC Bulletin Blaamder the symbol "CYBL".

For the periods indicated, the following table getth the high and low bid prices per share of own stock. These prices represent inter-
dealer quotations without retail markup, markdoamngommission and may not necessarily represeatibcansactions.

High($) Low ($)

2004

First Quarter 0.53 0.19
Second Quarter 0.85 0.27
Third Quarter 055 0.23
Fourth Quarter 0.35 0.06
2005

First Quarter 0.07 0.02
Second Quarter 0.20 0.05
Third Quarter 0.15 0.05
Fourth Quarter 0.15 0.06
2006

First Quarter 0.12 0.06

Second Quarter (1) 0.08 0.06

(1) As of April 5, 2006
DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES
COMMON STOCK

We are authorized to issue up to 700,000,000 sledresmmon stock, par value $.001. As of MarchZ106, there were 85,428,735 shares of
common stock outstanding. Holders of the commooksaoe entitled to one vote per share on all mattebe voted upon by the stockholders.
Holders of common stock are entitled to receivabigtsuch dividends, if any, as may be declarethbyBoard of Directors out of funds
legally available therefore. Upon the liquidatidissolution, or winding up of our company, the lsklof common stock are entitled to share
ratably in all of our assets which are legally &afzle for distribution after payment of all debtsleother liabilities and liquidation preference
of any outstanding common stock. Holders of comstork have no preemptive, subscription, redempiioronversion rights. The
outstanding shares of common stock are validlyeidstully paid and non-assessable.

PREFERRED STOCK

Our Articles of Incorporation authorize the issuan€ 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock, $0.00V/gae per share, the designation and
rights of which are to be determined by our BodrBioectors. Our Board of Directors has authoritythout action by the shareholders, to
issue all or any portion of the authorized but saél preferred stock in one or more series anétermine the voting rights, preferences a
dividends and liquidation, conversion rights, atiaeo rights of such series. We consider it des&réblhave preferred stock available to
provide increased flexibility in structuring podgitfuture acquisitions and financing and in meetingporate needs which may arise. If
opportunities arise that would make desirable $kaance of preferred stock through either pubferiwfy or private placements, the
provisions for preferred stock in our Articles atbrporation would avoid the possible delay anceesp of a shareholder's meeting, exce
may be required by law or regulatory authoritissulance of the preferred stock could result, how@ve series of securities outstanding that
will have certain preferences with respect to divids and liquidation over the common stock whichildeesult in dilution of the income per
share and net book value of the common stock.
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Issuance of additional common stock pursuant tocamyersion right which may be attached to the seofrany series of preferred stock may
also result in dilution of the net income per shamd the net book value of the common stock. Tleeifip terms of any series of preferred
stock will depend primarily on market conditionsrrhs of a proposed acquisition or financing, ameofactors existing at the time of
issuance. Our Board of Directors may issue additipneferred stock in future financing, but hascnarent plans to do so at this time. The
issuance of Preferred Stock could have the effiectaking it more difficult for a third party to aagje a majority of our outstanding voting
stock.

As of March 31, 2006, we 51.4806 shares of oureSeki Convertible Preferred Stock issued and outistgn Each share is convertible into

50,000 shares of common stock. The Series A CableRreferred have the following designations aghts:

The Board of Directors, pursuant to our Articledraforporation and By-Laws, authorized Series B\e&uotible Preferred Stock which was
issued to officers and directors in order to cohaecrued management fees and other liabilities800,000 shares of the Series B Preferred

Maturity: Perpetual Preferred

Dividend: 12% per annum. The
semi-annually in cas
option.

Fixed Conversion Price: The Series A Conver
convertible into commo
Stated Value: $5,000 per share
Mandatory Conversion: Beginning 180 days f
registration statemen
for our common stock
10 consecutive tradi
force the holders
Convertible Preferred
applicable conversion

Limitations on Conversion. Each holder of the Ser
shares shall not con
stock such that the
stock issued after th
when aggregated with
stock owned by such ho
of 4.99% of our then i
of common stock.

The holders of the Ser
no voting rights unti
to common shares.

No Voting Rights.

dividend shall be payable
h or common stock at our

tible Preferred shall be
n stock at $0.10 per share.

rom the effective date of a
t, if the closing bid price
exceeds $1.50 for a period of
ng days, we have the right to
to convert the Series A
into common stock at the
price.

ies A Convertible Preferred
vert the shares into common
number of shares of common
e conversion would exceed,
all other shares of common
Ider at such time, in excess
ssued and outstanding shares

ies A convertible shares have
| their shares are converted

Stock. The Series B Convertible Preferred Stockth@gollowing designations and rights:

Term: Perpetual Preferred
Dividend: 12% per annum
Conversion: Each share of the Ser

Stock may be converte

stock at the option of
Voting Rights: Except with respect to
Series B Preferred st
separately, the Series
superior voting righ
number of shares of C
Series B Preferred
conversion of such h
Preferred Stock. The
share.
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OPTIONS
There are currently options outstanding that haenkissued to our officers and directors to puel2¥s513,237 shares of our common stock.
WARRANTS

In connection with a Securities Purchase Agreerdategd September 23, 2004, we issued warrants thase 2,250,000 shares of common
stock. The warrants are exercisable until five géeom the date of issuance at a purchase pri$@.60 per share.

In connection with a Securities Purchase Agreerdated April 22, 2005, we issued warrants to puretZis000,000 shares of common stock.
The warrants are exercisable until five years ftbendate of issuance at a purchase price of $&03hare.

In connection with a Securities Purchase Agreerdatagd October 24, 2005, we issued warrants to pgecB00,000 shares of common stock.
The warrants are exercisable until five years ftbendate of issuance at a purchase price of $&d8hare.

In connection with a Securities Purchase Agreerdated December 28, 2005, we issued warrants tdvasec700,000 shares of common
stock. The warrants are exercisable until five géeom the date of issuance at a purchase pri$@.a6 per share.

In addition, in connection with a private placemefiering, we have issued 8,643,064 Series A art#l8,064 Series B warrants. The Seri
warrants are exercisable at $0.25 per share arfidhies B warrants are exercisable at $1.05 peesiibe Series A warrants expire on
December 31,2006 and the Series B warrants exp608. In addition, we issued Placement Agentavasrto the placement agent in the
private placement offering. We issued a total d3,000 placement agents warrants exercisable at §&iOshare, 1,550,000 placement agent
warrants exercisable at $0.10 per share, 1,55@R@@ment agent warrants exercisable at $0.25h@ee @nd 1,550,000 placement agent
warrants exercisable at $1.05 per share. All plargragent warrants expire in 2008.

In addition, we have 58,500 warrants outstandirey@gable at $0.25 per share, which expire in 2008 have 91,500 warrants outstanding
exercisable at $0.10 per share, which expire ir820e have 350,000 warrants outstanding exercis$6.50 per share, which expire on
May 28, 2006.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES

Not including approximately 83,010,628 shares ohown stock issuable upon exercise of outstanditigrpand warrants, approximatt
25,939,462 shares of common stock are issuabledlms current market prices, upon conversion dftaatling secured convertible notes
issued pursuant to the Securities Purchase Agraataged September 23, 2004, approximately 50,000s8@res of common stock are
issuable, based on current market prices, uponersion of outstanding secured convertible notasgegpursuant to the Securities Purchase
Agreement dated April 22, 2005. approximately 22,883 shares of common stock are issuable, basedroent market prices, upon
conversion of outstanding secured convertible nisssed pursuant to the Securities Purchase Agmgestated October 24, 2005 and
approximately 22,222,222 shares of common stocksatmble, based on current market prices, upoweesion of outstanding secured
convertible notes issued pursuant to the Secuitizshase Agreement dated December 28, 2005.

SEPTEMBER 2004 SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT

To obtain funding for our ongoing operations, wéeead into a Securities Purchase Agreement withdoaredited investors on September
23, 2004 for the sale of (i) $1,500,000 in secuenlertible notes, and (ii) warrants to purcha2s@,000 shares of our common stock. As of
March 31, 2006, $597,194.10 of the secured corbleriotes has been converted and $902,805.90 remaistanding.

The investors provided us with an aggregate of (L0 as follows:
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0 $500,000 was disbursed on September 23, 2004;
0 $500,000 was disbursed on October 20, 2004; and
0 $500,000 was disbursed on November 18, 2004.

The notes bear interest at 10%, mature two yeans fhe date of issuance, and are convertible imt@ommon stock, at the investors' option,
at the lower of:

0 $0.72; or

0 50% of the average of the three lowest intradaging prices for the common stock on the Over-Toemnter Bulletin Board for the 20
trading days before but not including the conversiate.

We have a call option under the terms of the seccoavertible notes. The call option provides uthwlie right to prepay all of the
outstanding secured convertible notes at any foreided we are not in default and our stock iditrg at or below $.60 per share.
Prepayment of the notes is to be made in cash égd&0% of the outstanding principal and accrurerest.

Our right to repay the notes is exercisable orlesst than ten trading days prior written noticéh holders of the secured convertible notes.
For notice purposes, a trading day is any day achlwbur common stock is traded for any period an@TC Bulletin Board. Notwithstandit
the notice of prepayment, the holders of the setooavertible notes have the right at all timesdavert all or any portion of the secured
convertible notes prior to payment of the prepaynaemount.

The full principal amount of the secured convedihbtes are due upon default under the terms afegconvertible notes. The warrants are
exercisable until five years from the date of issweaat a purchase price of $0.50 per share. Irtiaddive have granted the investors a sec
interest in substantially all of our assets andliettual property and registration rights.

APRIL 2005 SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT

To obtain funding for our ongoing operations, wéeeed into a Securities Purchase Agreement withdoaredited investors on April 22,
2005 for the sale of (i) $1,500,000 in secured eotilvle notes, and (i) warrants to purchase 25@00@ shares of our common stock.

The investors provided us with an aggregate of(KL(B0 as follows:
0 $600,000 was disbursed on April 22, 2005;

0 $500,000 was disbursed on May 24, 2005; and

0 $400,000 was disbursed on July 19, 2005.

The notes bear interest at 10%, mature three yearsthe date of issuance, and are convertibledotocommon stock, at the investors'
option, at the lower of:

0 $0.03; or

0 50% of the average of the three lowest intradaging prices for the common stock on the Over-Tloemnter Bulletin Board for the 20
trading days before but not including the conversiate.

We have a call option under the terms of the seccoavertible notes. The call option provides uthwlie right to prepay all of the
outstanding secured convertible notes at any forejided we are not in default and our stock iditrg at or below $.03 per share.
Prepayment of the notes is to be made in cash égeither (i) 125% of the outstanding principatiatcrued interest for prepayments
occurring within 30 days following the issue datehe secured convertible notes; (ii) 135% of thistanding principal and accrued interest
for prepayments occurring between 31 and 60 ddisnimg the issue date of the secured convertibliest and (i) 150% of the outstanding
principal and accrued interest for prepayments o after the 60th day following the issue dafi¢he secured convertible notes.
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Our right to repay the notes is exercisable orless than ten trading days prior written noticéh® holders of the secured convertible notes.
For notice purposes, a trading day is any day achlwbur common stock is traded for any period an@TC Bulletin Board. Notwithstandit
the notice of prepayment, the holders of the setooavertible notes have the right at all timesdavert all or any portion of the secured
convertible notes prior to payment of the prepaynaemount.

We also have a partial call option under the teofrthe secured convertible notes in any month iictwvthe current price of our common
stock is below $0.03. Under the terms of the plctd option, we have the right to pay the outsiiag principal amount of the secured
convertible notes plus one-month's interest for thanth, which will stay any conversions of thewsed convertible notes by the holders for
that month. The principal amount of the securedredible notes to be repaid is determined by digdihe then outstanding principal amount
of the notes by the maturity of the notes in montihs36.

The full principal amount of the secured convedibbtes are due upon default under the terms afsg@convertible notes. The warrants are
exercisable until five years from the date of issieaat a purchase price of $0.03 per share. Irtiaddive have granted the investors a sec
interest in substantially all of our assets andliettual property and registration rights.

OCTOBER 2005 STOCK PURCHASE AGREEMENT

To obtain funding for our ongoing operations, weéeeed into a Securities Purchase Agreement withdoaredited investors on October 24,
2005, for the sale of (i) $800,000 in secured caditvle notes, and (ii) warrants to purchase 800 $lres of our common stock.

The notes bear interest at 10%, mature three yearsthe date of issuance, and are convertibleaotocommon stock, at the investors'
option, at the lower of:

0 $0.06; or

0 50% of the average of the three lowest intradaging prices for the common stock on the Over-Tloenter Bulletin Board for the 20
trading days before but not including the conversiate.

We have a call option under the terms of the seccoavertible notes. The call option provides uthwhe right to prepay all of the
outstanding secured convertible notes at any fmm®jided we are not in default and our stock iditrg at or below $.03 per share.
Prepayment of the notes is to be made in cash égeither (i) 125% of the outstanding principatiatcrued interest for prepayments
occurring within 30 days following the issue datehe secured convertible notes; (ii) 135% of thiéstanding principal and accrued interest
for prepayments occurring between 31 and 60 ddimsnfimg the issue date of the secured convertibles; and (iii)) 150% of the outstanding
principal and accrued interest for prepayments ot after the 60th day following the issue daft¢he secured convertible notes.

Our right to repay the notes is exercisable orlesst than ten trading days prior written noticéh holders of the secured convertible notes.
For notice purposes, a trading day is any day achlwbur common stock is traded for any period an@TC Bulletin Board. Notwithstandit
the notice of prepayment, the holders of the setoomvertible notes have the right at all timesdavert all or any portion of the secured
convertible notes prior to payment of the prepaynaemount.

We also have a partial call option under the teofrthe secured convertible notes in any month iiciwvthe current price of our common
stock is below $0.10. Under the terms of the plaet#l option, we have the right to pay the outdiag principal amount of the secured
convertible notes plus one-month's interest for thanth, which will stay any conversions of thewsed convertible notes by the holders for
that month. The principal amount of the securedredible notes to be repaid is determined by digdihe then outstanding principal amount
of the notes by the maturity of the notes in montihs36.

The full principal amount of the secured convedihbtes are due upon default under the terms afegconvertible notes. The warrants are
exercisable until five years from the date of issueaat a purchase price of $0.10 per share. Irtiaddive have granted the investors a sec
interest in substantially all of our assets andliettual property and registration rights.
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DECEMBER 2005 STOCK PURCHASE AGREEMENT

To obtain funding for our ongoing operations, wieead into a Securities Purchase Agreement withdoaredited investors on December
2005, for the sale of (i) $700,000 in secured cadiite notes, and (ii) warrants to purchase 700 £ltfres of our common stock.

The notes bear interest at 8%, mature three yearsthe date of issuance, and are convertibleaota&common stock, at the investors' option,
at the lower of:

0 $0.10; or

0 35% of the average of the three lowest intradaging prices for the common stock on the Over-Tloemnter Bulletin Board for the 20
trading days before but not including the conversiate.

We have a call option under the terms of the seccoavertible notes. The call option provides uthwhe right to prepay all of the
outstanding secured convertible notes at any forejided we are not in default and our stock iditrg at or below $.09 per share.
Prepayment of the notes is to be made in cash égeither (i) 125% of the outstanding principatiatcrued interest for prepayments
occurring within 30 days following the issue datehe secured convertible notes; (ii) 135% of thiéstanding principal and accrued interest
for prepayments occurring between 31 and 60 ddiesafimg the issue date of the secured convertiblkest and (i) 150% of the outstanding
principal and accrued interest for prepayments o after the 60th day following the issue dafi¢he secured convertible notes.

Our right to repay the notes is exercisable orlesst than ten trading days prior written noticéh holders of the secured convertible notes.
For notice purposes, a trading day is any day achlwbur common stock is traded for any period an@TC Bulletin Board. Notwithstandit
the notice of prepayment, the holders of the setooavertible notes have the right at all timesdovert all or any portion of the secured
convertible notes prior to payment of the prepaynaemount.

We also have a partial call option under the teofrthe secured convertible notes in any month irctvthe current price of our common
stock is below $0.13. Under the terms of the plaet#l option, we have the right to pay the outdiag principal amount of the secured
convertible notes plus one-month's interest for thanth, which will stay any conversions of thewsed convertible notes by the holders for
that month. The principal amount of the securedredible notes to be repaid is determined by digdihe then outstanding principal amount
of the notes by the maturity of the notes in montihs36.

The full principal amount of the secured convedihbtes are due upon default under the terms afegconvertible notes. The warrants are
exercisable until five years from the date of issueaat a purchase price of $0.15 per share. Irtiaddive have granted the investors a sec
interest in substantially all of our assets andliettual property and registration rights.

MARCH 2006 STOCK PURCHASE AGREEMENT

To obtain funding for our ongoing operations, wéeead into a Securities Purchase Agreement withdocaredited investors on March 27,
2006, for the sale of (i) $500,000 in secured cadiite notes, and (ii) warrants to purchase 19,000 shares of our common stock.

The notes bear interest at 8%, mature three yearsthe date of issuance, and are convertibleaota&common stock, at the investors' option,
at the lower of:

0 $0.10; or

0 55% of the average of the three lowest intradaging prices for the common stock on the Over-Tloenter Bulletin Board for the 20
trading days before but not including the conversiate.

We have a call option under the terms of the seccoavertible notes. The call option provides uthwlie right to prepay all of the
outstanding secured convertible notes at any foreided we are not in default and our stock iditrg at or below $.13 per share.
Prepayment of the notes is to be made in cash égeither (i) 125% of the outstanding principatiatcrued interest for prepayments
occurring within 30 days following the issue datehe secured convertible notes; (ii) 135% of thistanding principal and accrued interest
for prepayments occurring between 31 and 60 ddiesafimg the issue date of the secured convertiblkest and (i) 150% of the outstanding
principal and accrued interest for prepayments o after the 60th day following the issue dafi¢he secured convertible notes.
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Our right to repay the notes is exercisable orless than ten trading days prior written noticéh® holders of the secured convertible notes.
For notice purposes, a trading day is any day achlwbur common stock is traded for any period an@TC Bulletin Board. Notwithstandit
the notice of prepayment, the holders of the setooavertible notes have the right at all timesdavert all or any portion of the secured
convertible notes prior to payment of the prepaynaemount.

We also have a partial call option under the teofrthe secured convertible notes in any month iictwvthe current price of our common
stock is below $0.13. Under the terms of the plctd option, we have the right to pay the outsiiag principal amount of the secured
convertible notes plus one-month's interest for thanth, which will stay any conversions of thewsed convertible notes by the holders for
that month. The principal amount of the securedredible notes to be repaid is determined by digdihe then outstanding principal amount
of the notes by the maturity of the notes in montihs36.

The full principal amount of the secured convedibbtes are due upon default under the terms afsg@convertible notes. The warrants are
exercisable until seven years from the date ofissa at a purchase price of $0.10 per share. lii@udve have granted the investors a
security interest in substantially all of our assatd intellectual property and registration rights

PENNY STOCK REGULATION.

Shares of our common stock are subject to ruleptaddy the Securities and Exchange Commissiornrdéigatiate broker-dealer practices in
connection with transactions in "penny stocks."Bestocks are generally equity securities withiagof less than $5.00 (other than
securities registered on certain national secsrégiechanges or quoted on the NASDAQ system, prdwic&t current price and volume
information with respect to transactions in thoseusities is provided by the exchange or systemg. enny stock rules require a broker-
dealer, prior to a transaction in a penny stockatioérwise exempt from those rules, deliver a siedided risk disclosure prepared by the
Securities and Exchange Commission, which conthaia$ollowing:

o A description of the nature and level of riskhie market for penny stocks in both public offesra;md secondary trading;

o A description of the broker's or dealer's duttethe customer and of the rights and remediedabtaito the customer with respect to
violation to such duties or other requirementseaiusities' laws;

o A brief, clear, narrative description of a deaterket, including "bid" and "ask" prices for perstgcks and the significance of the spread
between the "bid" and "ask" price;

o A toll-free telephone number for inquiries onailidinary actions;
o Definitions of significant terms in the disclosutocument or in the conduct of trading in penioglst; and

o Such other information and in such form (inclgdianguage, type, size and format), as the Seesid@nd Exchange Commission shall
require by rule or regulation.

Prior to effecting any transaction in a penny stdbk broker-dealer also must provide the custdheefollowing:
o The bid and offer quotations for the penny stock;
0 The compensation of the broker-dealer and itssgairson in the transaction;

0 The number of shares to which such bid and ask$apply, or other comparable information refatio the depth and liquidity of the
market for such stock; and

o Monthly account statements showing the markatevaf each penny stock held in the customer's atcou

In addition, the penny stock rules require thabiptd a transaction in a penny stock not otherwigempt from those rules, the broker-dealer
must make a special written determination thafreny stock is a suitable investment for the pusehand receive the purchaser's written
acknowledgment of the receipt of a risk disclosiedement, a written agreement to transactiondviimgpenny stocks, and a signed and
dated copy of a written suitably statement.
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These disclosure requirements may have the effeetlocing the trading activity in the secondaryrkea for a stock that becomes subject to
the penny stock rules. Holders of shares of ourrmomstock may have difficulty selling those shdresause our common stock will probe
be subject to the penny stock rules for an indateata period of time.

RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES

During the three months ended December 31, 200%ssued 325,000 shares of common stock upon caowen§ 6.5 shares of Class A
preferred stock.

In October 2005, we issued 400,000 shares of constumk at $0.07 per share in exchange for servargdered.

To obtain funding for our ongoing operations, wieead into a Securities Purchase Agreement with Rafiners, LLC, AJW Qualified
Partners, LLC, AJW Offshore, Ltd., and New Milleam Partners I, LLC on October 24, 2005 for thee &l (i) $800,000 in secured
convertible notes and (ii) warrants to buy 800,868res of our common stock.

The secured convertible notes bear interest at hdyre three years from the date of issuanceaemndonvertible into our common stock, at
the investors' option, at the lower of (i) $0.06i9r50% of the average of the three lowest in&sattading prices for the common stock on the
Over-TheCounter Bulletin Board for the 20 trading days befout not including the conversion date. The ffuihcipal amount of the secur
convertible notes are due upon default under tegt®f secured convertible notes. In addition, weehgranted the investors a security
interest in substantially all of our assets andliattual property and registration rights. Thenaats are exercisable until five years from the
date of issuance at a purchase price of $0.10haeesIn addition the warrants exercise price gdjssted in the event we issue common ¢

at a price below market, with the exception of aagurities issued as of the date of this warrant.

To obtain funding for our ongoing operations, wéeeed into a Securities Purchase Agreement with Rafiners, LLC, AJW Qualified
Partners, LLC, AJW Offshore, Ltd., and New Milleami Partners Il, LLC on December 28, 2005 for tHe s&(i) $700,000 in secured
convertible notes and (ii) warrants to buy 700,808res of our common stock.

The secured convertible notes bear interest an@&ture three years from the date of issuance, endaavertible into our common stock, at
the investors' option, at the lower of (i) $0.1Qi9r55% of the average of the three lowest intnattading prices for the common stock on the
Over-TheCounter Bulletin Board for the 20 trading days befout not including the conversion date. The ffuihcipal amount of the secur
convertible notes are due upon default under thegt®f secured convertible notes. In addition, weehgranted the investors a security
interest in substantially all of our assets andliattual property and registration rights. Thenaats are exercisable until five years from the
date of issuance at a purchase price of $0.12haee sIn addition the warrants exercise price gdjssted in the event we issue common ¢

at a price below market, with the exception of aagurities issued as of the date of this warrant.

In December 2005, we issued 333,333 shares of conshock at $0.09 per share in exchange for serveredered.
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ITEM 6. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITIONS AND RESULT OF OPERATIONS.

This report contains forwaroking statements. Actual results and events cdiffdr materially from those projected, anticipéter implicit,
in the forward-looking statements as a result efribk factors set forth below and elsewhere is thport.

With the exception of historical matters, the natidiscussed herein are forward-looking statemtbiatsinvolve risks and uncertainties.
Forward-looking statements include, but are noitéchto, statements concerning anticipated trendevenues and net income, projections
concerning operations and available cash flow. &@twal results could differ materially from theutts discussed in such forward-looking
statements. The following discussion of our finahcondition and results of operations should lael i@ conjunction with our financial
statements and the related notes thereto appesisegrhere herein.

OVERVIEW

We are in the development stage and our efforts baen principally devoted to designing, develogind marketing advanced lighting
systems that utilize white (and other) light emitidiodes as illumination elements.

We are developing and marketing new product apjidica of solid-state diodal illumination (TM) thdémonstrate added value over
traditional lighting systems. Using proprietarytirology, we are creating a family of products skt and accent lighting, emergency and
security lighting, and specialized lighting systefimsmilitary and homeland security. Our solid-stlighting technology offers extended light
life and greater cost effectiveness than othettiegigorms of illumination. We are expanding ourrkegting activity into channels of retail,
commercial, institutional and military sales.

With our task and accent lighting, the target mewkeclude kitchen and bath cabinet manufactunedscesigner and installation contractors
for the residential market. In the commercial méskeur task and accent lighting products and eererg and security lighting products
address the lighting needs in hotels, hospitalsing homes, airports, shopping centers and melfarhily complexes; long-term evacuation
solutions for theaters, office and public buildingsduced maintenance cost solutions for propegygagers as applied to walkway, corrido
landscape lighting. For our retail products, ougéa customers include the home improvement andwuosr goods retailers. For the military
and homeland security products, our target maiketade all branches of the military and all gowvasnt organizations providing security
services such as border control and airport securit

In April of 2005, we began the development of aglae boundary security lighting product for thditary that will provide night-vision
compatible infrared lighting and intense, brightitwhighting capability in a portable configuratifor fast, effective deployment. As of June
30, 2005, we completed the first phase of develapraed expect final development to be completédénthird quarter of 2005.

In April of 2005, we completed the fulfillment ofcantract with Kings Park School District of Lorgjdnd, New York for the installation of
our Emergency Lighting System in a local middleshThe objective of the pilot project was to po®/a local school with long-term
interim lighting solution so the Kings Park commynwill have a well-lit emergency shelter in theeat of a natural or manmade disaster. In
May of 2005, the completed project was presentddad<ings Park School District administration amel hope the pilot could become a
model for emergency lighting throughout other sdhtistricts.

In the second quarter of 2005, we developed a wgrielationship with Cree, Inc., a leading manufeat of lightemitting diode componen
We plan on developing products that utilize theeCselid-state lighting technology. We anticipate@mcing our first product based on Cree
technology in the third quarter of 2005.

In May 2005, we introduced the Aeon (TM) "Task &aent" lighting products to address residential eldighting, interior cabinet accent
lighting and under cabinet counter lighting withtwally heatless, long-term (75,000 hours of lifglhting solutions for the homeowner. This
unique lighting resource for cabinetmakers, comtracand do-it-yourselfers offers three levelsigiit from soft white diodal(TM) elements
that are cool to the touch and easy to install. Aéen closet, cabinet and counter lighting was iadet the Kitchen & Bath Industries Tra
Show in Las Vegas, NV on May 10, 2005. Our genlgghting technology will provide a 40 to 60 perceatiuction in maintenance costs for
property managers through the replacement of watke@ridor or landscape lighting elements and é&ent reduction in energy costs for
those fixtures. In May, we began establishing teei\dealer network as our channel of distributantiie Aeon products. As of June 30,
2005, we have 26 dealers representing 15 of th@Gdgorth American housing markets. We are contigto build the Aeon dealer network
with qualify dealers and hope that the Aeon deeti@nnel will cover many of top 50 North Americarubimg markets by year end.
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In March of 2005, we submitted a proposal to theAMfiat to providing emergency lighting for only teebway cars and platforms. The
proposal also called for an initial subway caraitistion trial to prove the capability and valueonfr technology. In April of 2005, we met
with the Vice President of Engineering for the M@Ad discussed our proposal and the timing forahwithin the subway system. Based on
this meeting and the resulting discussions ofithe period required to accomplish our trial objeesi, we understand the MTA is still
evaluating the trial proposal but this is not apty at this point and no determination can be enatithis time as to when the MTA will make
a decision on our proposal. Therefore, we plardtiress the Port Authority with a similar proposal &n initial subway car installation trial
prove the capability and value of our technologyisTprogram will be formally submitted in the thigdarter of 2005.

In June of 2005, we completed the developmentekibon(TM) KeyCap, a new product designed to prwdnsumers with a long-lasting,
slender sleeve of electronics that turns a starnklaydnto a lighting device. The patented Keon(THé&yCap is the practical lighting solution
for every consumer who carries keys. Each Keon(iB\M) sturdy elastic surround that fits standardhegds and features an electronics
package that focuses a bright diodaltm beam of tiglhvn the key shaft. When its miniaturized buti®depressed, the Keon(TM) directs li
precisely into the intended keyhole or other taxdeturfaces. We anticipate supply and sales wgiirben the Keon(TM) in the third quarter
2005.

In June of 2005, we received confirmation thatAeon Pro E "Task & Accent" home lighting meets €atia's Title 24 new residential
energy requirements of 40 lumens per watt. Verifigdndependent Testing Laboratories, Inc., a thady independent testing firm, the
Aeon Pro E product was confirmed to operate auftehs per watt. The Title 24 California energy regquents went into effect in 1978 to
decrease California's energy consumption. Sinag, the legislation has saved the state more thérb#i&on in electricity and natural gas
costs. The Title 24 standards will be revised itober of 2005 and the new standard of 40 lumensvaérwill be required. ITL was founded
50 years ago, is one of the most experienced imdkgm testing labs in the country and provides mteyunbiased information on virtually
every type of lighting to lighting manufacturergsigners, architects and the government. Excedédegitle 24 standards opens up the
California market to our Aeon Pro E line and matkesse products one of the only alternatives tattoadhl task and accent lighting for the
home. The 55 lumen per watt efficiency of the A@oa E products is an industry-leading efficacy and that surpasses California’s Title 24
requirements of 40 lumens per watt. We anticiplade $ales of the Aeon Pro E to grow in the fourthrtgr of 2005 when the new standards
are in force.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The preparation of our consolidated financial stegets in conformity with accounting principles geally accepted in the United States
requires us to make estimates and judgments tfeatt @fur reported assets, liabilities, revenued,apenses, and the disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities. We base our estimateswadghjents on historical experience and on variokhsrassumptions we believe to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Future ev@awsver, may differ markedly from our current expéions and assumptions. While there
are a number of significant accounting policiegetihg our consolidated financial statements; webe the following critical accounting
policies involve the most complex, difficult andogective estimates and judgments:

o stock-based compensation; and
0 revenue recognition.
STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148coAnting for Stock-Based Compensation - Transiéiod Disclosure. This statement
amends SFAS No. 123 - Accounting for Stock-Baseah@mnsation, providing alternative methods of vaduify transitioning to the fair
market value based method of accounting for staslet employee compensation. FAS 148 also requseleslire of the method used to
account for stock-based employee compensationteneftect of the method in both the annual andimténancial statements. The
provisions of this statement related to transiticethods are effective for fiscal years ending dtecember 15, 2002, while provisions rele
to disclosure requirements are effective in finahports for interim periods beginning after Daber 31, 2002.
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The Company elected to continue to account forkshased compensation plans using the intrinsicesalssed method of accounting
prescribed by APB No. 25, "Accounting for Stockuled to Employees," and related interpretations.dditte provisions of APB No. 25,
compensation expense is measured at the granfoddbes difference between the fair value of ttecktand the exercise price.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

For revenue from product sales, the Company regegmnievenue in accordance with SEC Staff AccourBulgetin No. 101, "Revenue
Recognition in Financial Statements" ("SAB 101'AB5101 requires that four basic criteria must be before revenue can be recognized:
(1) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exBjtstglivery has occurred; (3) the selling pricéxed and determinable; and (4) collectibil
is reasonably assured. Determination of criterjaa(®l (4) are based on management's judgmentgliegdhe fixed nature of the selling
prices of the products delivered and the collelityodf those amounts. Provisions for discounts eglthtes to customers, estimated returns
allowances, and other adjustments are providethftire same period the related sales are recofdedCompany defers any revenue for
which the product has not been delivered or isexthip refund until such time that the Company #edcustomer jointly determine that the
product has been delivered or no refund will beunegl.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005 AND 2004 COMPARED.
Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2005%8dr623. This compares to revenues of $23,80htyear ended December 31, 2004.

Cost of goods sold were $235,767 for 2005 compaitd$160,260 for 2004. Much of the design effanttbe ELS product was costed into
the product installation for the City of Cleveland.

Operating expenses for the year ended Decemb@0B5, were $2,911,761 compared with $3,364,15%@year ended December 31, 2004.
Included in expenses for 2005 was $217,798 foruting services compared with $1,382,387 for thevjpus year. Most of this expense was
the result of issuing common stock of the Compaegorded at the market price on the date of thedsyan lieu of cash payments. The
services provided included product design, markgebtbpment and capital fund-raising services.

MARKET FUND SERVICES
DEVELOPMENT RAISING PERFORMED

CASH PAYMENTS

Dan Neustedter 645.00 Bu siness Development
Geiger & Associates  15,000.00 Bu siness Development
K3 Enterprises, Inc. 3,660.00 Bu siness Development

STOCK PAYMENTS

Michael Goldberg 21,000.00 Le gal Services

Robert Rubin 3,000.00 Bu siness Development
Jay Isley 5,000.00 En gineering

3CD Consulting, Inc.  97,000.00 Bu siness Development
Sichenzia Ross etal 58,333.30 Le gal Services
Warrants Jay Isley 14,160.00 En gineering

159,465.00 58,333.30
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For the

Years Ende d
12/31/2005 12/ 31/2004
Salaries & benefits 1,046,548 977,529
Marketing and advertising 276,714 109,651
Rent 52,706 35,954
Insurance 55,257 8,389
Depreciation and amortization 25,769 47,686
Impairment Loss 30,544 0
Research and development 499,618 391,421
Legal expense 229,175 64,229
Accounting services 146,901 63,915
Investor relations 27,758 62,354
Travel, living and entertainment 150,909 167,035
Office expenses 152,064 53,609
TOTAL 2,693,963 1, 981,772

Operating expenses for 2005 also include $499,6pfsenting costs incurred in the design and prdyation of three products to be
marketed during the second quarter of 2005. Acdngmiractices have historically attempted to mastenues and costs; however, in
compliance with the requirements of FASB numbex@ have taken these costs to expense during the2064a.

Interest expense for 2005 was $1,623,781 compar$825,840 for 2004. Included in interest expens005 is $1,206,487 which was
booked to recognize the imbedded beneficial comwverfgature of the $4,500,000 convertible notesapeyentered into during the 3rd and
quarters of 2004 and 2005.

The net loss realized for 2005 was $9,410,6570dt®per share on an average of 54,490,102 shatgsuoding and compares to net income
of $3,103,049, or $0.19 per share on an avera®6,01,174 shares outstanding for the year 2004.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As of December 31, 2005, we had a working capiéicd of $1,483,902. As a result of our operatiogses for the year ended December 31.
2005, we generated a cash flow deficit of $2,668#dm operating activities. Cash flows used ineisting activities was $45,884 during the
year ended December 31, 2005. We met our cashreegemts during this period through the issuanc8@d@00,000 Convertible Not

Payable.

While we have raised capital to meet our workingitedh and financing needs in the past, additiomalricing is required in order to meet our
current and projected cash flow deficits from ofieres and development.

By adjusting our operations and development tdefel of capitalization, we believe we have suffiti capital resources to meet projected
cash flow deficits through the next twelve montHewever, if thereafter, we are not successful inegating sufficient liquidity from
operations or in raising sufficient capital res@s;con terms acceptable to us, this could haveterimiaadverse effect on our business, results
of operations, liquidity and financial condition.

Our independent certified public accountant hatedtan their report, dated as of March 16, 2008t the have incurred operating losses and
that we are dependent upon management's abildguelop profitable operations. These factors amuhgrs may raise substantial doubt
about our ability to continue as a going concern.

October 2005 Stock Purchase Agreement

To obtain funding for our ongoing operations, weéeeed into a Securities Purchase Agreement withdoaredited investors on October 24,
2005, for the sale of (i) 800,000 in secured cotilviernotes, and (ii) warrants to purchase 800 glres of our common stock. The investors
purchased all of the secured convertible notes @no®er 24, 2005.

The proceeds received from the sale of the seamedertible notes were used for business developmeposes, working capital needs, pre-
payment of interest, payment of consulting andllésgss and purchasing inventory.

The secured convertible notes bear interest at b@yre three years from the date of issuanceaendonvertible into our common stock, at
the investors' option, at the lower of (i) $0.0§i9r50% of the average of the three lowest intnattading prices for the common stock on the
Over-The€ounter Bulletin Board for the 20 trading days befout not including the conversion date. The fuithcipal amount of the secur
convertible notes is due upon default under thedesf secured convertible notes. The warrantsyaeecisable until five years from the date
issuance at a purchase price of $0.10 per shaeeldition, the conversion price of the secured edibe notes and the exercise price of the
warrants will be adjusted in the event that weéssommon stock at a price below the fixed converpitace, below market price, with the
exception of any securities issued in connectiah Wie Securities Purchase Agreement. The convepsioe of the secured convertible notes
and the exercise price of the warrants may be tatjus certain circumstances such as if we papekdividend, subdivide or combine
outstanding shares of common stock into a greatisser number of shares, or take such otherrectis would otherwise result in dilutior
the selling stockholder's position. As of the datéhis filing, the conversion price for the seaimnvertible debentures and the exercise |

of the warrants have not been adjusted. The saltingkholders have contractually agreed to regtrit ability to convert or exercise their
warrants and receive shares of our common stodk that the number of shares of common stock helithéyn and their affiliates after such
conversion or exercise does not exceed 4.9% dhteissued and outstanding shares of common dioekldition, we have granted the
investors a security interest in substantiallyoalbur assets and intellectual property and reafistn rights.

December 2005 Stock Purchase Agreement

To obtain funding for our ongoing operations, wéeead into a Securities Purchase Agreement withdcaredited investors on December
2005, for the sale of (i) $700,000 in secured cadiite notes, and (ii) warrants to purchase 700 §ltdres of our common stock. The inves
purchased all of the secured convertible notes @no®er 24, 2005.

The proceeds received from the sale of the seamedertible notes were used for business developmeposes, working capital needs, pre-
payment of interest, payment of consulting andlléggs and purchasing inventory.
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The secured convertible notes bear interest an@&tyre three years from the date of issuance, @ndoavertible into our common stock, at
the investors' option, at the lower of (i) $0.1Q(i9r35% of the average of the three lowest in&sattading prices for the common stock on the
Over-The€ounter Bulletin Board for the 20 trading days befout not including the conversion date. The ffuithcipal amount of the secur
convertible notes is due upon default under thadesf secured convertible notes. The warrantsyaeecisable until five years from the date
issuance at a purchase price of $0.15 per shaeeldition, the conversion price of the secured edibe notes and the exercise price of the
warrants will be adjusted in the event that weeéssommon stock at a price below the fixed converpitace, below market price, with the
exception of any securities issued in connectiah Wie Securities Purchase Agreement. The convepsioe of the secured convertible notes
and the exercise price of the warrants may be tatjus certain circumstances such as if we papekdividend, subdivide or combine
outstanding shares of common stock into a greatiesser number of shares, or take such otherrectie would otherwise result in dilutior
the selling stockholder's position. As of the datéhis filing, the conversion price for the seaimnvertible debentures and the exercise |

of the warrants have not been adjusted. The saltimgkholders have contractually agreed to regtrit ability to convert or exercise their
warrants and receive shares of our common stodk thiat the number of shares of common stock helithémn and their affiliates after such
conversion or exercise does not exceed 4.9% dhtreissued and outstanding shares of common dtoekldition, we have granted the
investors a security interest in substantiallyoalbur assets and intellectual property and reafistn rights.

March 2006 Stock Purchase Agreement

To obtain funding for our ongoing operations, wéeead into a Securities Purchase Agreement withdocaredited investors on March 27,
2006, for the sale of (i) $500,000 in secured cdiite notes, and (ii) warrants to purchase 19,000 shares of our common stock. The
investors purchased all of the secured convertibtes on March 27, 2006.

The proceeds received from the sale of the seamedertible notes were used for business developmeposes, working capital needs, pre-
payment of interest, payment of consulting andlléggs and purchasing inventory.

The secured convertible notes bear interest an@&ture three years from the date of issuance, endaavertible into our common stock, at
the investors' option, at the lower of (i) $0.1Q(i9r55% of the average of the three lowest inasattading prices for the common stock on the
Over-TheCounter Bulletin Board for the 20 trading days befout not including the conversion date. The ffuihcipal amount of the secur
convertible notes is due upon default under thasesf secured convertible notes. The warrantsyeecisable until seven years from the date
of issuance at a purchase price of $0.10 per shmegldition, the conversion price of the secureavertible notes and the exercise price o
warrants will be adjusted in the event that weeéssommon stock at a price below the fixed converpitace, below market price, with the
exception of any securities issued in connectiah tie Securities Purchase Agreement. The convepsioe of the secured convertible notes
and the exercise price of the warrants may be tatjus certain circumstances such as if we papekdividend, subdivide or combine
outstanding shares of common stock into a greatiesser number of shares, or take such otherrectie would otherwise result in dilutior
the selling stockholder's position. As of the daftéhis filing, the conversion price for the sealimnvertible debentures and the exercise |

of the warrants have not been adjusted. The sedtinckholders have contractually agreed to redtrait ability to convert or exercise their
warrants and receive shares of our common stodk thiat the number of shares of common stock helihémn and their affiliates after such
conversion or exercise does not exceed 4.9% dhtreissued and outstanding shares of common dtoekldition, we have granted the
investors a security interest in substantiallyoalbur assets and intellectual property and reagistn rights.

March 2006 Loan

On March 30, 2006 we entered into a financing agerg with the International Capital Group, LLC whlgy our Directors pledged 4,000,(
shares of their personal common stock as collateral loan in the amount of $152,400. The loamiearan interest rate of 4.99% payable
quarterly and has a maturity of March 31, 2009.
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We will still need additional investments in ordercontinue operations to cash flow break even.idatthl investments are being sought, but
we cannot guarantee that we will be able to ok#ath investments. Financing transactions may irectbd issuance of equity or debt
securities, obtaining credit facilities, or otharancing mechanisms. However, the trading priceusfcommon stock and the downturn in the
U.S. stock and debt markets could make it morécditfto obtain financing through the issuance aiiey or debt securities. Even if we are
able to raise the funds required, it is possibd tie could incur unexpected costs and expender) fallect significant amounts owed to us,
or experience unexpected cash requirements thdtviaee us to seek alternative financing. Furtlifane issue additional equity or debt
securities, stockholders may experience additiditalion or the new equity securities may have tsglpreferences or privileges senior to
those of existing holders of our common stockdditional financing is not available or is not dabie on acceptable terms, we will have to
curtail our operations again.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

On February 16, 2006 the Financial Accounting Saatsl Board (FASB) issued SFAS 155, "AccountingGertain Hybrid Instruments,"”
which amends SFAS 133, "Accounting for Derivatiasttuments and Hedging Activities," and SFAS 14@cbunting for Transfers and
Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishmeiftsiabilities." SFAS 155 allows financial instrumsrthat have embedded derivatives ti
accounted for as a whole (eliminating the needftodate the derivative from its host) if the halddects to account for the whole instrument
on a fair value basis. SFAS 155 also clarifies ame&nds certain other provisions of SFAS 133 andSSE40. This statement is effective for
all financial instruments acquired or issued icdisyears beginning after September 15, 2006. Tdragany does not expect its adoption of
this new standard to have a material impact ofiriggcial position, results of operations or cashwt.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No, 1Bisclosures about Segments of an EnterpriseéRaidted Information” ("SFAS 131")
establishes standards for reporting informatiorareéigmg operating segments in annual financial statés and requires selected information
for those segments to be presented in interim &ilahmneports issued to stockholders. SFAS 131 edtablishes standards for related
disclosures about products and services and geugrapeas. Operating segments are identified agpooents of an enterprise about which
separate discrete financial information is avaédbk evaluation by the chief operating decisiorkeraor decision-making group, in making
decisions how to allocate resources and assessiparice. The information disclosed herein matgrigpresents all of the financial
information related to the Company's principal @piegy segment.

In March 2005, the FASB issued FASB InterpretafieiN) No. 47, "Accounting for Conditional Asset Rement Obligations, an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143," whicuiees an entity to recognize a liability for tterfvalue of a conditional asset retirement
obligation when incurred if the liability's fair kg can be reasonably estimated. The Company isregbito adopt the provisions of FIN 47
later than the first quarter of fiscal 2006. Thexpany does not expect the adoption of this Intéatien to have a material impact on its
consolidated financial position, results of opemasi or cash flows.

In May 2005 the FASB issued Statement of Finanstounting Standards (SFAS) No. 154, "Accountingaf@ies and Error Corrections, a
replacement of APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB Staterien 3." SFAS 154 requires retrospective applioato prior periods' financial
statements for changes in accounting principlesasiit is impracticable to determine either théguespecific effects or the cumulative effect
of the change. SFAS 154 also requires that retotisggeapplication of a change in accounting priteipe limited to the direct effects of the
change. Indirect effects of a change in accourmciple, such as a change in non-discretionaofitesharing payments resulting from an
accounting change, should be recognized in thegef the accounting change. SFAS 154 also reqthisdsa change in depreciation,
amortization, or depletion method for long-livednrfinancial assets be accounted for as a changecimunting estimate effected by a change
in accounting principle. SFAS 154 is effective &mcounting changes and corrections of errors nraflsdal years beginning after December
15, 2005. Early adoption is permitted for accoupntthanges and corrections of errors made in figgals beginning after the date this
Statement is issued. The Company does not expeeidhption of this SFAS to have a material impact®consolidated financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.

PRODUCT RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

We anticipate continuing to incur research and bg@reent expenditures in connection with the develept of our Advanced llumination
Systems during the next twelve months. We antieipizait we will expend approximately $800,000 irs #mdeavor.
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These projected expenditures are dependent upogeoerating revenues and obtaining sources ofdingrin excess of our existing capital
resources. There is no guarantee that we will beessful in raising the funds required or genegatavenues sufficient to fund the projected
costs of research and development during the nefv¢ months.

ACQUISITION OR DISPOSITION OF PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

We do not anticipate the sale of any significamipgarty, plant or equipment during the next tweheanths. We do not anticipate the
acquisition of any significant property, plant gugoment during the next 12 months.

RISK FACTORS

Much of the information included in this annual seancludes or is based upon estimates, projestirother "forward-looking statements".
Such forward-looking statements include any pragest or estimates made by us and our managemeohirection with our business
operations. While these forward-looking statemeamsl, any assumptions upon which they are basedyade in good faith and reflect our
current judgment regarding the direction of ouribess, actual results will almost always vary, siimes materially, from any estimates,
predictions, projections, assumptions or otherruperformance suggested herein.

Such estimates, projections or other "forward-laglkstatements" involve various risks and uncelitsrdas outlined below. We caution the
reader that important factors in some cases hdgetafl and, in the future, could materially affactual results and cause actual results to
differ materially from the results expressed in angh estimates, projections or other "forward-ingkstatements".

Our common shares are considered speculative. €stdap investors should consider carefully the fasttors set out below.

RISKS RELATING TO OUR BUSINESS:

WE HAVE A HISTORY OF LOSSES WHICH MAY CONTINUE, WHI CH MAY NEGATIVELY IMPACT OUR ABILITY TO
ACHIEVE OUR BUSINESS OBJECTIVES.

We incurred a net loss of $9,410,657 for the yealed December 31, 2005 compared to a net incor$ig, 203,049 for the year ended
December 31, 2004. We cannot assure you that waat@ave or sustain profitability on a quarterlyaonual basis in the future. Our
operations are subject to the risks and competitibarent in the establishment of a business enserprhere can be no assurance that future
operations will be profitable. Revenues and prpiftany, will depend upon various factors, inclugliwhether we will be able to continue
expansion of our revenue. We may not achieve osinkss objectives and the failure to achieve soeltsgvould have an adverse impact on
us.

IF WE ARE UNABLE TO OBTAIN ADDITIONAL FUNDING OUR BJSINESS OPERATIONS WILL BE HARMED AND IF WE DO
OBTAIN ADDITIONAL FINANCING OUR THEN EXISTING SHARBHOLDERS MAY SUFFER SUBSTANTIAL DILUTION.

We will require additional funds to sustain and &xg our sales and marketing activities. We antieipiaat we will require up to
approximately $4 million to fund our continued ogtions for the next twelve months, depending oemnere from operations. We need
additional funding for for research and developmartreasing inventory, marketing and general afrdinistrative expenses. Although this
amount is less than our net losses in the pas¢xwect to decrease our general and administratipenses by eliminating most of our
consulting fees. In the event that we cannot sicanitly reduce our consulting fees, we will needaise additional funds to continue our
operations. Additional capital will be requiredeffectively support the operations and to othenirigglement our overall business strategy.
There can be no assurance that financing will ladlave in amounts or on terms acceptable to e, all. The inability to obtain additional
capital will restrict our ability to grow and magduce our ability to continue to conduct busingssations. If we are unable to obtain
additional financing, we will likely be required twirtail our marketing and development plans arssitdy cease our operations. Any
additional equity financing may involve substantdltion to our then existing shareholders.
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OUR INDEPENDENT AUDITORS HAVE EXPRESSED SUBSTANTIADOUBT ABOUT OUR ABILITY TO CONTINUE AS A GOINC
CONCERN, WHICH MAY HINDER OUR ABILITY TO OBTAIN FUTURE FINANCING.

In their report dated March 16, 2006, our indepabdeditors stated that our financial statementsife year ended December 31, 2005 were
prepared assuming that we would continue as a gmingern. Our ability to continue as a going condsfan issue raised as a result of losses
for the year ended December 31, 2005 in the amufuBf,410,657. We continue to experience net opeyébsses. Our ability to continue as

a going concern is subject to our ability to geteeeaprofit and/or obtain necessary funding frortsimle sources, including obtaining
additional funding from the sale of our securitiégreasing sales or obtaining loans and granta frarious financial institutions where
possible. Our continued net operating losses iseré@e difficulty in meeting such goals and theme lbe no assurances that such method:
prove successful.

IF WE ARE UNABLE TO RETAIN THE SERVICES OF MESSREYANS, SCHMIDT OR RINGO, OR IF WE ARE UNABLE TO
SUCCESSFULLY RECRUIT QUALIFIED MANAGERIAL AND SALESPERSONNEL HAVING EXPERIENCE IN BUSINESS, WE
MAY NOT BE ABLE TO CONTINUE OUR OPERATIONS.

Our success depends to a significant extent upondhtinued service of Mr. Donald F. Evans, oure€kixecutive Officer, Mr. Mark D.
Schmidt, our President and Mr. John Ringo, our &acy and Corporate Counsel. Loss of the servit®tegsrs. Evans, Schmidt or Ringo
could have a material adverse effect on our grovetvenues, and prospective business. We do notamakey-man insurance on the life of
Messrs. Evans or Ringo. In addition, in order tocgssfully implement and manage our business plawill be dependent upon, among
other things, successfully recruiting qualified ragerial and sales personnel having experiencesiméss. Competition for qualified
individuals is intense. There can be no assurdratente will be able to find, attract and retainstixig employees or that we will be able to
find, attract and retain qualified personnel onemtable terms.

MANY OF OUR COMPETITORS ARE LARGER AND HAVE GREATERINANCIAL AND OTHER RESOURCES THAN WE DO AN
THOSE ADVANTAGES COULD MAKE IT DIFFICULT FOR US T@OMPETE WITH THEM.

The lighting and illumination industry is extremealgmpetitive and includes several companies that bahieved substantially greater market
shares than we have, and have longer operatingieist have larger customer bases, and have stibyagreater financial, development a
marketing resources than we do. If overall demamnaér products should decrease it could have anady adverse affect on our operating
results.

OUR TRADEMARK AND OTHER INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHT S MAY NOT BE ADEQUATELY PROTECTED
OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES, RESULTING IN LOSS OF REV ENUE.

We believe that our trademarks, whether licensealared by us, and other proprietary rights are ingwd to our success and our competi
position. In the course of our international expamswe may, however, experience conflict with was third parties who acquire or claim
ownership rights in certain trademarks. We cansstige that the actions we have taken to estabidipeotect these trademarks and other
proprietary rights will be adequate to prevent a&ti@n of our products by others or to prevent atievm seeking to block sales of our
products as a violation of the trademarks and etgny rights of others. Also, we cannot assure thai others will not assert rights in, or
ownership of, trademarks and other proprietarytsgt ours or that we will be able to successftdigolve these types of conflicts to our
satisfaction. In addition, the laws of certain fgrecountries may not protect proprietary rightshte same extent, as do the laws of the United
States.

OUR PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS, OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS OWN A CONTROLLING INTEREST IN OUR VOTING
STOCK AND INVESTORS WILL NOT HAVE ANY VOICE IN OUR MANAGEMENT.

We have issued 800,000 shares of Series B ConleRikferred Stock to our officers and directorsclvtare convertible into 8 million shar

of common stock and, in the aggregate, have ti rigcast 80 million votes in any vote by our gteiders. Combined with the number of
shares of common stock held by our officers andatiars, they have the right to cast approximat8l$®% of all votes by our shareholders. As
a result, these stockholders, acting together,haie the ability to control substantially all neat submitted to our stockholders for approval,
including:

o election of our board of directors;
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o removal of any of our directors;
o amendment of our certificate of incorporatiorbglaws; and

0 adoption of measures that could delay or preaefitange in control or impede a merger, takeovettar business combination involving
us.

As a result of their ownership and positions, dveators and executive officers collectively aréedio influence all matters requiring
stockholder approval, including the election oediors and approval of significant corporate tratisas. In addition, sales of significant
amounts of shares held by our directors and exexofficers, or the prospect of these sales, cadigrsely affect the market price of our
common stock. Management's stock ownership maypdiage a potential acquirer from making a tendfarafr otherwise attempting to
obtain control of us, which in turn could reduce stock price or prevent our stockholders fromieéad a premium over our stock price.

RISKS RELATING TO OUR CURRENT FINANCING ARRANGEMENT

THERE ARE A LARGE NUMBER OF SHARES UNDERLYING OUREEURED CONVERTIBLE NOTES AND WARRANTS THAT
MAY BE AVAILABLE FOR FUTURE SALE AND THE SALE OF THESE SHARES MAY DEPRESS THE MARKET PRICE OF OUR
COMMON STOCK.

As of March 31, 2006, we had 85,428,735 shareswingon stock issued and outstanding, secured cdoieenbtes outstanding pursuant to
our securities purchase agreements dated Sept@3b2004, April 22, 2005, October 24, 2005 and Ddwner 28, 2005 that may be conver
into an estimated 25,939,462, 50,000,000, 22,837ahdl 22,222,222 shares of common stock at cummarket prices, respectively, and
outstanding warrants pursuant to our securitieshiage agreements dated September 23, 2004, Ap&lDR3, October 24, 2005 and
December 28, 2005, to purchase 2,250,000, 25,000800,000 and 700,000 shares of common stockecésply. In addition, the number
shares of common stock issuable upon conversitimeodutstanding secured convertible notes issuesbipnot to the securities purchase
agreements dated September 23, 2004, April 22,,200ber 24, 2005 and December 28, 2005 may inerédhe market price of our stock
declines. All of the shares, including all of theses issuable upon conversion of the secured dilsleenotes and upon exercise of our
warrants, may be sold without restriction. The sdilthese shares may adversely affect the markeg pf our common stock.

THE CONTINUOUSLY ADJUSTABLE CONVERSION PRICE FEATUROF OUR SECURED CONVERTIBLE NOTES COULD
REQUIRE US TO ISSUE A SUBSTANTIALLY GREATER NUMBERF SHARES, WHICH WILL CAUSE DILUTION TO OUR
EXISTING STOCKHOLDERS.

Our obligation to issue shares upon conversioruosecured convertible notes is essentially liraglérhe following is an example of the
amount of shares of our common stock that are ldspapon conversion of our secured convertiblesgexcluding accrued interest), based
on market prices 25%, 50% and 75% below the mantie¢, as of March 31, 2006 of $0.07.

SEPTEMBER 2004, APRIL 2005 AND OCTOBER 2005 SECURELBCONVERTIBLE NOTES, COMBINED

Number % of
% Below Price Per With Discount of Shares Outstanding
Market Share at 50% Issuable Stock
25% $ 0525 $ .02625 122,204,997 58.86%
50% $ 035 % .0175 183,307,495 68.21%
75% $ .0175 $ .00875 366,614,990 81.10%

DECEMBER 2005 SECURED CONVERTIBLE NOTES

Number % of % Below Price Per With Discount of S¥sa®utstandin

Market Share at 55% Issuable Stock

25% $ .0525 $ .023625 29,629,630 25.75%
50% $ .035 $ .01575 44,444,445 34.22%
75% $ 0175 $ .007875 88,888,889 50.99%
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As illustrated, the number of shares of commonksissuable upon conversion of our secured convertibtes will increase if the market
price of our stock declines, which will cause doatto our existing stockholders.

THE CONTINUOUSLY ADJUSTABLE CONVERSION PRICE FEATUR E OF OUR SECURED CONVERTIBLE NOTES MAY
HAVE A DEPRESSIVE EFFECT ON THE PRICE OF OUR COMMON STOCK.

The secured convertible notes issued in Septentizt, Z2pril 2005 and October 2005 are convertibte shares of our common stock at a
50% discount to the trading price of the commomwlstarior to the conversion. The secured convertitloes issued in December 2005 are
convertible into shares of our common stock at% @fscount to the trading price of the common stmdr to the conversion. The significi
downward pressure on the price of the common stsdke selling stockholders convert and sell matarnounts of common stock could
have an adverse effect on our stock price. In axdihot only the sale of shares issued upon caeiweor exercise of secured convertible
notes, series B convertible preferred stock andamés, but also the mere perception that thess saléd occur, may adversely affect the
market price of the common stock.

THE ISSUANCE OF SHARES UPON CONVERSION OF THE SEEIRCONVERTIBLE NOTES AND EXERCISE OF
OUTSTANDING WARRANTS MAY CAUSE IMMEDIATE AND SUBSTANTIAL DILUTION TO OUR EXISTING STOCKHOLDERS.

The issuance of shares upon conversion of the ag@@amnvertible notes and exercise of warrants rasyltrin substantial dilution to the
interests of other stockholders since the selltogkholders may ultimately convert and sell thé &mhount issuable on conversion. Although
AJW Partners, LLC, AJW Qualified Partners, LLC, AlMfshore, Ltd., and New Millennium Partners I, Clmay not convert their secured
convertible notes and/or exercise their warranssidh conversion or exercise would cause them toroere than 4.9% of our outstanding
common stock, this restriction does not prevent Ad&tners, LLC, AJW Qualified Partners, LLC, AJW$ibre, Ltd., and New Millennium
Partners I, LLC from converting and/or exercisBane of their holdings and then converting the oégeir holdings. In this way, AJW
Partners, LLC, AJW Qualified Partners, LLC, AJW §bire, Ltd., and New Millennium Partners I, LLCut sell more than this limit while
never holding more than this limit. There is no @plimit on the number of shares that may be issugidh will have the effect of further
diluting the proportionate equity interest and mgtpower of holders of our common stock, includimgestors in this offering.

IN THE EVENT THAT OUR STOCK PRICE DECLINES, THE SHRES OF COMMON STOCK ALLOCATED FOR CONVERSION OF
THE SECURED CONVERTIBLE NOTES AND REGISTERED PURSNATO THIS REGISTRATION STATEMENT MAY NOT BE
ADEQUATE AND WE MAY BE REQUIRED TO FILE A SUBSEQUENREGISTRATION STATEMENT COVERING ADDITIONAL
SHARES. IF THE SHARES WE HAVE ALLOCATED AND ARE REGTERING HEREWITH ARE NOT ADEQUATE AND WE ARE
REQUIRED TO FILE AN ADDITIONAL REGISTRATION STATEMET, WE MAY INCUR SUBSTANTIAL COSTS IN CONNECTIO!
THEREWITH.

Based on our current market price and the potetidiatease in our market price as a result of theisce of shares upon conversion of the
secured convertible notes, we have made a godddsiimate as to the amount of shares of commak #hat we are required to register and
allocate for conversion of the secured convertiloltes. Accordingly, we have allocated and regist&@®0,000,000 shares to cover the
conversion of the secured convertible notes. Irethent that our stock price decreases, the shamsronon stock we have allocated for
conversion of the secured convertible notes andesyistering hereunder may not be adequate. I$hlaees we have allocated to the
registration statement are not adequate and weequéred to file an additional registration statetee may incur substantial costs in
connection with the preparation and filing of suebistration statement.

IF WE ARE REQUIRED FOR ANY REASON TO REPAY OUR OUTASNDING SECURED CONVERTIBLE NOTES, WE WOULD BE
REQUIRED TO DEPLETE OUR WORKING CAPITAL, IF AVAILABE, OR RAISE ADDITIONAL FUNDS. OUR FAILURE TO
REPAY THE SECURED CONVERTIBLE NOTES, IF REQUIREDOULD RESULT IN LEGAL ACTION AGAINST US, WHICH
COULD REQUIRE THE SALE OF SUBSTANTIAL ASSETS.
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In September 2004, we entered into a SecuritiesHase Agreement for the sale of an aggregate 608000 principal amount of secured
convertible notes. The secured convertible notesiae and payable, with 10% interest, two years fifte date of issuance, unless sooner
converted into shares of our common stock. In A20D5, we entered into a Securities Purchase Agreefar the sale of an aggregate of
$1,500,000 principal amount of secured convertiloiges. The secured convertible notes are due arablea with 10% interest, three years
from the date of issuance, unless sooner convertedhares of our common stock. In October 2005emtered into a Securities Purchase
Agreement for the sale of an aggregate of $800p@@@ipal amount of secured convertible notes. 3éeured convertible notes are due and
payable, with 10% interest, three years from the daissuance, unless sooner converted into slofi@s common stock. In December 20
we entered into a Securities Purchase Agreemettiiéosale of an aggregate of $700,000 principaluarnof secured convertible notes. The
secured convertible notes are due and payable 8#ttimterest, three years from the date of issuantdess sooner converted into shares of
our common stock. In addition, any event of defanlier our secured convertible notes issued pursaamur September 2004, April 2005,
October 2005 or December 2005 securities purchgi@®@ents, such as our failure to repay the prahcpinterest when due, our failure to
issue shares of common stock upon conversion biidfter, our failure to timely file a registratistatement or have such registration
statement declared effective, breach of any covenapresentation or warranty in the SecuritiesRase Agreement or related convertible
note, the assignment or appointment of a recetveontrol a substantial part of our property oribess, the filing of a money judgment, writ
or similar process against our company in exce§50f000, the commencement of a bankruptcy, insclvereorganization or liquidation
proceeding against our company and the delistimguoftommon stock could require the early repaymétiie secured convertible notes,
including a default interest rate of 15% on thestariding principal balance of the notes if the ditfia not cured with the specified grace
period. We anticipate that the full amount of thewwed convertible notes will be converted intoreha@f our common stock, in accordance
with the terms of the secured convertible notesidfwere required to repay the secured conventibles, we would be required to use our
limited working capital and raise additional funtfave were unable to repay the notes when requtredinote holders could commence legal
action against us and foreclose on all of our agsetecover the amounts due. Any such action wddire us to curtail or cease operations.

RISKS RELATING TO OUR COMMON STOCK:

WE HAVE ISSUED A LARGE AMOUNT OF STOCK IN LIEU OF £&SH FOR PAYMENT OF EXPENSES AND EXPECT TO
CONTINUE THIS PRACTICE IN THE FUTURE. SUCH ISSUANGEOF STOCK WILL CAUSE DILUTION TO OUR EXISTING
STOCKHOLDERS.

Due to our limited economic resources, we try suésstock in lieu of cash for payment of expensessarvices provided for us. In 2005, we
issued 2,783,333 shares of common stock in exchimngexpenses and services rendered. We antidggieng shares of common stock
whenever possible in lieu of cash to conserve imantial position. The number of shares of comnionksissued is directly related to our
stock price at the time of issuance. In the eMaaitt dur stock price drops, we will be requiredssuie larger amounts of shares for expenses
and services rendered, if the other party is wjllio accept stock at all. The issuance of sharesmimon stock will have the effect of diluti
the proportionate equity interest and voting powefdnolders of our common stock, including investiorshis offering.

IF WE FAIL TO REMAIN CURRENT ON OUR REPORTING REQREMENTS, WE COULD BE REMOVED FROM THE OTC
BULLETIN BOARD WHICH WOULD LIMIT THE ABILITY OF BROKER-DEALERS TO SELL OUR SECURITIES AND THE
ABILITY OF STOCKHOLDERS TO SELL THEIR SECURITIES INHE SECONDARY MARKET.

Companies trading on the OTC Bulletin Board, suekhig must be reporting issuers under Section #2ecSecurities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended, and must be current in their repodsrupection 13, in order to maintain price quotapavileges on the OTC Bulletin Board.
we fail to remain current on our reporting requiests, we could be removed from the OTC BulletiniBloAs a result, the market liquidity
for our securities could be severely adverselycadie by limiting the ability of broker-dealers tellsour securities and the ability of
stockholders to sell their securities in the seeopdnarket.

OUR COMMON STOCK IS SUBJECT TO THE "PENNY STOCK" RBS OF THE SEC AND THE TRADING MARKET IN OUR
SECURITIES IS LIMITED, WHICH MAKES TRANSACTIONS INDUR STOCK CUMBERSOME AND MAY REDUCE THE VALUE
OF AN INVESTMENT IN OUR STOCK.

The Securities and Exchange Commission has ad&atled15g-9 which establishes the definition of ariipy stock,” for the purposes
relevant to us, as any equity security that haseket price of less than $5.00 per share or withacise price of less than $5.00 per share,
subject to certain exceptions. For any transadtiealving a penny stock, unless exempt, the rutegiire:

o that a broker or dealer approve a person's atéoutransactions in penny stocks; and

o the broker or dealer receive from the investaritten agreement to the transaction, setting farthidentity and quantity of the penny stock
to be purchased.
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In order to approve a person's account for trammacin penny stocks, the broker or dealer must:
o obtain financial information and investment exgece objectives of the person; and

0 make a reasonable determination that the trangsadh penny stocks are suitable for that persahthe person has sufficient knowledge
experience in financial matters to be capable afiating the risks of transactions in penny stocks.

The broker or dealer must also deliver, prior tg ttansaction in a penny stock, a disclosure sdeqahescribed by the Commission relating
to the penny stock market, which, in highlight form

o sets forth the basis on which the broker or deable the suitability determination; and
o that the broker or dealer received a signediewriagreement from the investor prior to the tratisa.

Generally, brokers may be less willing to exectd@dactions in securities subject to the "penngiStaules. This may make it more difficult
for investors to dispose of our common stock andea decline in the market value of our stock.

Disclosure also has to be made about the risksvefting in penny stocks in both public offeringsl @& secondary trading and about the
commissions payable to both the broker-dealer beddgistered representative, current quotationthéosecurities and the rights and
remedies available to an investor in cases of fiayknny stock transactions. Finally, monthly esta¢nts have to be sent disclosing recent
price information for the penny stock held in tle@unt and information on the limited market in pgistocks.

TRENDS, RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

We have sought to identify what we believe to leerttost significant risks to our business, but wenca predict whether, or to what extent,
any of such risks may be realized nor can we gtieesthat we have identified all possible risks thaght arise. Investors should carefully
consider all of such risk factors before makingrarestment decision with respect to our Common IStoc
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RUSSELL BEDFORD STEFANOU MIRCHANDANI LLP
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED CERTIFIED PUBLIC A CCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors
Cyberlux Corporation
Durham, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying balance she@gharlux Corporation (the "Company"), as of Decenffg 2005 and 2004 and the
related statements of losses, deficiency in stddens' equity, and cash flows for each of the twarg ended December 31, 2005. These
financial statements are the responsibility ofdcbmpany's management. Our responsibility is toesgan opinion on these financial
statements based upon our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with starsdafrthe Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@dited States of America). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatements. An audit includes examining, orsaldasis, evidence supporting the amounts andodiss in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptesiused and significant estimates made by marageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe oditagprovide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referedlbove present fairly, in all material respedts, financial position of the Company as of
December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the results opisations and its cash flows for each of the teary ended December 31, 2005, in
conformity with accounting principles generally apted in the United States of America.

The accompanying financial statements have begraprd assuming the Company will continue as a goamgern. As discussed in Note L
the financial statements, the Company has suffeseatring losses from operations. This raises suibisi doubt about its ability to continue
as a going concern. Management's plans in regatebe matters are also described in Note L. Treméial statements do not include any
adjustments that might result from the outcoméehisf tincertainty.

As discussed in the Note N to the financial star@s@éhe Company restated the balance sheetsDzcefmber 31, 2004 and 2003 and related
statement of operations, cash flow and deficiencstockholders' equity for the years then ended.

/'s/ RUSSELL BEDFORD STEFANOU M RCHANDANI LLP

Russel | Bedford Stefanou M rchandani LLP
Certified Public Accountants

New York, NY
March 16, 2006

F-1



BALANCE SHEETS

CYBERLUX CORPORATION

December 31,

2005 2004
(As restated-Note N)
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ a7 5,656 $ 415,375
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $0 (Note A) 9,424 -
Inventories, net of allowance of $110,821 and $0, r espectively (Note A) 33 8,097 -
Other current assets 4 2,813 68,404
Total current assets 86 5,991 483,779
Property, plant and equipment, net of accumulated d epreciation of $118,105
and $92,335 as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, res pectively (Note B) 6 3,133 43,018
Other Assets:
Patents (Note A) -- 30,544
$ 92 9,124 $ 557,341
LIABILITIES AND DEFICIENCY IN STOCKH OLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable (Note C) $ 65 7,929 $ 176,094
Accrued liabilities (Note C) 78 2,586 325,969
Short-term notes payable - related parties (Note H) 36 6,594 399,080
Short-term notes payable (Note D) 54 2,783 27,500
Total current liabilities 2,34 9,893 928,643
Long-term liabilities:
Notes payable (Note D) 35 1,418 80,822
Derivative liability relating to convertible debent ures (Note D) 6,80 9,449 1,490,576
Warrant liability relating to convertible debenture s (Note E) 3,35 2,026 1,185,245
Total long-term liabilities 10,51 2,893 2,756,643
Total liabilities 12,86 2,786 3,685,286
Commitments and contingencies
Series A convertible preferred stock, $0.001 par value, 200 shares designated;
59.8606 and 151.8606 shares issued and outstandin g as of December 31,
2005 and 2004, respectively (Note F) 29 9,303 759,303
DEFICIENCY IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (Note F)
Series B convertible preferred stock, $0.001 par va lue, 800,000 shares
designated, 800,000 shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 800 800
Common stock, $0.001 par value, 300,000,000 shares authorized, 75,608,334 and
23,770,233 shares issued and outstanding as of De cember 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively 7 5,607 23,770
Additional paid-in capital 6,38 2,570 5,369,466
Accumulated deficit (18,69 1,941) (9,281,284)
Deficiency in stockholders' equity (12,23 2,964) (3,887,248)
$ 92 9,124 $ 557,341

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statements
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REVENUES:
Net sales
Cost of goods sold

Gross (loss)
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Depreciation and amortization
Impairment loss (Note A)
Research and development
General and administrative expenses

Total operating expenses

(LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS:

Other income (expense)

Unrealized gain (loss) relating to adjustment of de
to fair value of underlying securities (Note D an

Interest income
Interest expense
Debt acquisition costs

Net income/(loss) before provision for income taxes

and preferred dividend

Preferred dividend-beneficial conversion discount o

Income taxes (benefit)

CYBERLUX CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year en
2005

(3,093,0
rivative and warrant liability
d E) (4,485,6
3

(1,623,7
(208,5

(9,410,6

n convertible preferred-

NET INCOME (LOSS) AVAILABLE TO COMMON STOCKHOLDERS $ (9,410,6

Weighted average number of common shares outstandin

Weighted average number of common shares outstandin

Net income/(loss) per share - basic (Note J)

Net income/(loss) per share - fully diluted (Note J

Preferred dividend

g, basic 54,490,1
g, fully diluted 211,355,2
$ (0.
) $ (.
$ 96,0

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottfimancial statements
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ded December 31,
2004

(As restated-Note N)

23§ 23,803
67) (160,260)
45) (136,457)
69 47,686
44 -
18 391,421
30 2,925,052
61 3,364,159
06) (3,500,616)
54) 7,922,926
49 282
81) (325,840)
65) (193,703)
57) 3,903,049
(800,000)

57) $ 3,103,049

02 16,701,174
39 48,201,174
17) s 0.19
17) s 0.06
00 $ 96,000




CYBERLUX CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCY IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005 AND 2004

Series B
Convertible
Preferred
- s A dditional Stock
Stock Common Common Stock Paid in  Subscription
S hares Amount  Shares Amount Capital Receivable
Balance as of January 1, 2004-As restated
(Note N) - $ -- 8049,141 $ 8049 $ 1,174,096 $ (276,186)

Preferred stock, Class B, issued in January,
2004 as compensation for management fees at
$1.00 per share 8 00,000 800 - - 799,200 -

Collected balance due from stock subscription -- - - - - 276,186

Common stock issued in January, 2004 in
exchange for services rendered at $0.37 per
share - -- 2,585,000 2,585 953,865 -

Common stock issued in January, 2004 for
settlement of debt at $0.25 per share - - 110,764 111 27,580 -

Common stock issued in March, 2004 in
exchange for services rendered at $0.21 per
share - -- 1,200,000 1,200 250,800 -

Common stock cancelled with return of
collateral deposit with factor -- -~ (450,000) (450) (89,550) --

Sale of common stock in May, 2004 at $0.10
per share -- -- 5,310,000 5,310 525,690 -

Common stock issued in May, 2004 for
settlement of debt at $0.10 per share - - 50,000 50 4,950 --

Common stock issued in June, 2004 in
exchange for services rendered at $0.08 per
share - -- 1,760,000 1,760 129,600 -

Common stock subscription received -- - -- -- - 22,500

Common stock issued in July, 2004 in
exchange for services rendered at $0.40 per
share - - 100,000 100 39,900 -

Common stock issued in July, 2004 as payment
of stock subscription -- - 100,000 100 9,900 (10,000)

Common stock issued in July, 2004 in
connection with conversion of preferred
stock, Class A - - 200,000 200 19,800 -

Common stock issued in August, 2004 in
connection with exercise of warrants at
$0.25 per share -- -- 701,000 701 174,549 (12,500)

Common stock issued September, 2004 in
connection with exercise of warrants at
$0.25 per share -- -- 200,000 200 49,800 -

Common stock issued in October, 2004 for
services rendered at $0.25 per share - - 690,000 690 171,810 -

Common stock issued in October, 2004 as
settlement of debt at $0.15 per share - - 140,019 140 20,869 --

Common stock issued in November, 2004 as
payment towards convertible debentures -- - 1,035,221 1,035 107,663 -

Common stock issued in December, 2004, as
payment towards convertible debentures -- - 1,035,221 1,035 35,197 -

Common stock issued in December, 2004 to
preferred stockholders, class A as
registration rights penalty -- - 203,867 204 89,497 -

Common stock issued in December, 2004 in
connection with conversion of preferred
stock, Class A - - 750,000 750 74,250 -

Beneficial conversion feature of convertible
debenture -- - -- -- 800,000 -

Net Income - - - - . .

Balance December 31, 2004:-(as restated-Note N) 8 00,000 $ 800 23,770,233 $ 23,770 $ 5,369,466 $ -



Common stock issued in January, 2005 in
connection with conversion of preferred
stock, Class A

Common stock issued in January, 2005 as
payment towards convertible debentures

Common stock issued in February, 2005 in
connection with conversion of preferred
stock, Class A

Common stock issued in February, 2005 as
payment towards convertible debentures

Common stock issued in March, 2005 as
payment towards convertible debentures

Common stock issued in April, 2005 in
connection with conversion of preferred
stock, Class A

Common stock issued in April, 2005 for
services rendered at $0.3 per share

Common stock issued in April, 2005 as
payment towards convertible debentures

Common stock issued in May, 2005 as payment
towards convertible debentures

Common stock issued in May, 2005 in
connection with conversion of preferred
stock, Class A

Common stock issued in June, 2005 in
exchange for services rendered at $0.02 per
share

Common stock issued in June, 2005 as payment
towards convertible debentures

Common stock issued in July, 2005 as payment
towards convertible debentures

Common stock issued in July, 2005 in
connection with conversion of preferred
stock, Class A

Common stock issued in August, 2005 in
exchange for services rendered at $0.097 per
share

Common stock issued in September, 2005 in
connection with conversion of preferred
stock, Class A

Common stock issued in October, 2005 in
exchange for services rendered at $0.07 per
share

Common stock issued in October, 2005 in
connection with conversion of preferred
stock, Class A

Common stock issued in November, 2005 in
connection with conversion of preferred
stock, Class A

Common stock issued in December, 2005 in
exchange for services rendered at $0.091 per
share

Net loss

BALANCE AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2005

A

Balance as of January 1, 2004-As restated
(Note N) $

Preferred stock, Class B, issued in January,
2004 as compensation for management fees at
$1.00 per share

Collected balance due from stock subscription
Common stock issued in January, 2004 in

exchange for services rendered at $0.37 per
share

- -- 1,675,000

- -- 2,070,442

- -- 250,000

- -- 1,035,221

—~ - 2,070,442

- - 250,000

- - 800,000

- - 2,070,442

- - 10,535,221

- -- 1,075,000

- -- 250,000

- -- 17,100,000

- -- 9,573,000

- -- 775,000

- -- 1,000,000

- - 250,000

- - 400,000

- -- 125,000

- -- 200,000

333,333

1,675

2,070

250

1,035

2,071

250

800

2,070

10,535

1,075

250

17,100

9,573

775

1,000

250

400

125

200

333

Total
(Deficiency in)
ccumulated  Stockholders'
Deficit Equity

(12,384,333) $ (11,478,374)

- 800,000

- 276,186

- 956,450

165,825 -

37,578 -

24,750 -

8,106 --

22,165 -

24,750 -

23,200 -

21,533 -

86,405 -

106,425 -

4,750 --

128,570 -

71,798 -

76,725 -

96,000 -

24,750 -

27,600 -

12,375 -

19,800 -

6,382,570 $




Common stock issued in January, 2004 for
settlement of debt at $0.25 per share - 27,691

Common stock issued in March, 2004 in
exchange for services rendered at $0.21 per
share - 252,000

Common stock cancelled with return of
collateral deposit with factor - (90,000)

Sale of common stock in May, 2004 at $0.10
per share - 531,000

Common stock issued in May, 2004 for
settlement of debt at $0.10 per share - 5,000

Common stock issued in June, 2004 in
exchange for services rendered at $0.08 per
share - 131,360

Common stock subscription received - 22,500

Common stock issued in July, 2004 in
exchange for services rendered at $0.40 per
share - 40,000

Common stock issued in July, 2004 as payment
of stock subscription - -

Common stock issued in July, 2004 in
connection with conversion of preferred
stock, Class A - 20,000

Common stock issued in August, 2004 in
connection with exercise of warrants at
$0.25 per share - 162,750

Common stock issued September, 2004 in
connection with exercise of warrants at
$0.25 per share - 50,000

Common stock issued in October, 2004 for
services rendered at $0.25 per share - 172,500

Common stock issued in October, 2004 as
settlement of debt at $0.15 per share - 21,009

Common stock issued in November, 2004 as
payment towards convertible debentures -- 108,698

Common stock issued in December, 2004, as
payment towards convertible debentures -- 36,232

Common stock issued in December, 2004 to
preferred stockholders, class A as
registration rights penalty -- 89,701

Common stock issued in December, 2004 in
connection with conversion of preferred

stock, Class A - 75,000
Beneficial conversion feature of convertible

debenture - 800,000

Net Income 3,103,049 3,103,049
Balance December 31, 2004:—(a_s restated-Note N) $ E92;31—284_)$_(3E—387248)

Common stock issued in January, 2005 in
connection with conversion of preferred
stock, Class A - 167,500

Common stock issued in January, 2005 as
payment towards convertible debentures -- 39,648

Common stock issued in February, 2005 in
connection with conversion of preferred
stock, Class A - 25,000

Common stock issued in February, 2005 as
payment towards convertible debentures -- 9,141

Common stock issued in March, 2005 as
payment towards convertible debentures -- 24,236

Common stock issued in April, 2005 in
connection with conversion of preferred
stock, Class A - 25,000

Common stock issued in April, 2005 for
services rendered at $0.3 per share - 24,000

Common stock issued in April, 2005 as



payment towards convertible debentures - 23,603

Common stock issued in May, 2005 as payment
towards convertible debentures - 96,940

Common stock issued in May, 2005 in
connection with conversion of preferred
stock, Class A - 107,500

Common stock issued in June, 2005 in
exchange for services rendered at $0.02 per
share - 5,000

Common stock issued in June, 2005 as payment
towards convertible debentures - 145,670

Common stock issued in July, 2005 as payment
towards convertible debentures - 81,371

Common stock issued in July, 2005 in
connection with conversion of preferred
stock, Class A - 77,500

Common stock issued in August, 2005 in
exchange for services rendered at $0.097 per
share - 97,000

Common stock issued in September, 2005 in
connection with conversion of preferred
stock, Class A - 25,000

Common stock issued in October, 2005 in
exchange for services rendered at $0.07 per
share - 28,000

Common stock issued in October, 2005 in
connection with conversion of preferred
stock, Class A - 12,500

Common stock issued in November, 2005 in
connection with conversion of preferred
stock, Class A - 20,000

Common stock issued in December, 2005 in
exchange for services rendered at $0.091 per

share 30,333
Net loss (9,410,657) (9,410,657)
BALANCE AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2005 $ (18,691,941) $ (12,232,964)

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statements
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CYBERLUX CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Yea r Ended
2005 2004

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net income (loss) available to common stockholders $ (9,410,657) $ 3,103,049
Adjustments to net income (loss) to net cash used o n operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 25,769 47,686
Unrealized (gain)/loss related to the adjustment of derivative and warranty

liability to fair value of underlying securities 4,485,654 (7,922,926)
Impairment of patent costs 30,544
Preferred dividend-beneficial conversion feature 800,000
Common stock options issued in connection with serv ices rendered -- -
Common stock issued for previously incurred debt - 288,326
Common stock issued as payment in settlement of de bt 420,608 144,931
Common stock issued (canceled) for factoring deposi t - (90,000)
Common stock issued in connection with services ren dered 184,333 1,552,307
Preferred stock issued as payment for accrued manag ement fees - 723,670
Preferred stock issued for previously incurred debt - 76,330
Warrants issued in connection with services rendere d -- -
Accretion of convertible notes payable 785,879 80,822
(Increase) decrease in:
Deposits - 236,000
Accounts receivable (9,424) -
Inventories (338,097) -
Prepaid expenses 25,590 (68,404)
Other assets - (30,544)
Increase (decrease) in:
Accrued interest 307,433 -
Accrued liabilities 347,115 389,781
Management fee payable-related party - (996,508)
Other accounts payable 481,836 (120,293)

Net cash (used in) operating activities (2,663,417) (1,785,773)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of fixed assets (45,884) (21,859)

Net cash (used in) investing activities (45,884) (21,859)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payments of short-term notes payable, net - (292,500)
(Payments of ) proceeds from short-term notes payab le-shareholders, net (32,485) 191,235
Proceeds from issuance of convertible notes payable 2,802,067 1,186,281
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock - 79,308
Proceeds from issuance of commons stock subscriptio n - 276,186
Proceeds from issuance of common stock - 766,250
Net cash provided by financing activities 2,769,582 2,206,760
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 60,281 399,128
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 415,375 16,247
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 475,656 $ 415,375

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the period for interest $ 87,044 $ 75,103
Cash paid during the period for taxes - -

NON CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Unrealized (gain)/loss related to the adjustment of derivative and warranty

liability to fair value of underlying securities 4,485,654 (7,922,926)
Common stock options issued in connection with serv ices rendered -- -
Common stock issued in connection with services ren dered 184,333 1,552,307
Common stock issued for previously incurred debt - 288,326
Common stock issued in settlement of debt 420,608 144,931
Common stock issued (canceled) for factoring deposi t - (90,000)
Convertible preferred shares issued for accrued man agement fees - 723,670
Convertible preferred shares issued for note payabl e and accrued interest - 76,330
Warrants issued in connection with financing 757,366 -
Warrants issued to consultants for services 14,160 349,173

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottfimancial statements
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CYBERLUX CORPORATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2005 AND 2004

NOTE A-SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

GENERAL
A summary of the significant accounting policieplgd in the preparation of the accompanying finainstatements follows.
BUSINESS AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Cyberlux Corporation (the "Company") is incorpothtsn May 17, 2000 under the laws of the State afdda. Untill December 31, 2004, the
Company was a development state enterprise aseddfinder Statement on Financial Accounting Starsddad7, Development Stage
Enterprises ("SFAS No.7"). The Company developsjufectures and markets long-term portable lighgrapgucts for commercial and
industrial users. While the Company has generaeenues from its sale of products, the Companyrtasred expenses, and sustained
losses. Consequently, its operations are subjedt tisks inherent in the establishment of a nesithess enterprise. As of December 31, 2
the Company has accumulated losses of $18,641,941.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenues are recognized in the period that seraieeprovided. For revenue from product salesCihimpany recognizes revenue in
accordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 1®EVENUE RECOGNITION ("SAB104"), which supersededfSAccounting Bulletin

No. 101, REVENUE RECOGNITION IN FINANCIAL STATEMENS ("SAB101"). SAB 101 requires that four basicemisi must be me
before revenue can be recognized: (1) persuasiderae of an arrangement exists; (2) delivery lrasiged; (3) the selling price is fixed and
determinable; and (4) collectibility is reasonahfsured. Determination of criteria (3) and (4)k@sed on management's judgments regarding
the fixed nature of the selling prices of the pradulelivered and the collectibility of those amisuProvisions for discounts and rebates to
customers, estimated returns and allowances, ded atljustments are provided for in the same péhiedelated sales are recorded. The
Company defers any revenue for which the produstiiod been delivered or is subject to refund wutdh time that the Company and the
customer jointly determine that the product hasmsivered or no refund will be required. At Dedmm31, 2005 and 2004, the Company
did not have any defer revenue.

SAB 104 incorporates Emerging Issues Task Forc2l0QEITF 00-21"), MULTIPLE DELIVERABLE REVENUE ARRNGEMENTS.
EITF 00-21 addresses accounting for arrangemeatsrihy involve the delivery or performance of npl#iproducts, services and/or rights to
use assets. The effect of implementing EITF 00+2the Company's financial position and resultsp#rations was not significant.

ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith generally accepted accounting principleguiees management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amourdassats and liabilities and disclosure of contihgassets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amountsvefmge and expenses during the reporting periodidhcesults could differ from those
estimates.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, timep@ny considers all highly liquid debt instrumemtschased with a maturity date of
three months or less to be cash equivalents.
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CYBERLUX CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2005 AND 2004

NOTE A-SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

The Company translates the foreign currency firelrstatements in accordance with the requiremdrfisadement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 52, "Foreign Currency TranslatiorsSe&ts and liabilities are translated at currenhamsge rates, and related revenue and
expenses are translated at average exchangenrafsdt during the period. Resulting translatidjuatments are recorded as a separate
component in stockholders' equity. Foreign curremagslation gains and losses are included intditerment of operations.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or etadietermined by the average cost method. The Coynpavides inventory allowances
based on estimates of obsolete inventories. Inviestaonsist of products available for sale toritistors and customers as well as raw
material.

Components of inventories as of December 31, 20052804 are as follows:

2005 2004
Component parts $ 223,299 $ -
Finished goods 225,619 -
448,918 -
Less: allowance for obsolete inventory (110,821 ) (--)
$ 338,097 $

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Wheadeir otherwise disposed, the related carryirlgezand accumulated depreciation are
removed from the respective accounts and the ffetelice less any amount realized from disposii®neflected in earnings. For financial
statement purposes, property and equipment aredext@at cost and depreciated using the strdightmethod over their estimated useful li
as follows:

Furniture and fixtures 7 years
Office equipment 3 to 5 years Manufacturing equipti8years

ADVERTISING COSTS

The Company expenses all costs of marketing andrtising as incurred. Marketing and advertisingststaled $276,714 and $100,132 for
the year ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, regplgcti
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CYBERLUX CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2005 AND 2004

NOTE A-SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Company accounts for research and developrosts m accordance with the Financial Accountiren8ards Board's Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 2 ("SFAS 2")¢ctAunting for Research and Development Costs". USBAS 2, all research and
development costs must be charged to expensewasddc Accordingly, internal research and developneests are expensed as incurred.
Third-party research and developments costs arensegl when the contracted work has been performasl milestone results have been
achieved. Company-sponsored research and developosta related to both present and future prodaretexpensed in the period incurred.
The Company expenditures were $499,618 and $39bd24search and product development for the yededDecember 31, 2005 and
2004, respectively. 14.

RECLASSIFICATION

Certain reclassifications have been made to peaogds' data to conform to the current presentafitvese reclassifications had no effect on
reported losses.

IMPAIRMENT OF LONG LIVED ASSETS

The Company has adopted Statement of Financial uxdtoay Standards No. 144 (SFAS 144 ). The Statemgepiires that long-lived assets
and certain identifiable intangibles held and usgthe Company be reviewed for impairment whenevents or changes ill circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset nwdyoa recoverable. Events relating to recoveratifiay include significant unfavorable
changes in business conditions, recurring losses farecasted inability to achieve break-even afieg results over an extended period. The
Company evaluates the recoverability of long-liasdets based upon forecasted undercounted cash 8bwuld impairment in value be
indicated, the carrying value of intangible assétsbe adjusted, based on estimates of futureadieted cash flows resulting from the use
ultimate disposition of the asset. SF AS No. 146 abquires assets to be disposed of be reported &iwer of the carrying amount or the
value less costs to sell.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value estimates discussed herein are basedagptain market assumptions and pertinent infdonatvailable to management as of
December 31, 2005and 2004. The respective carighge of certain on-balance-sheet financial insents approximated their fair values.
These financial instruments include cash and adsquayable. Fair values were assumed to approxicaaitging values for cash and payat
because they are short term in nature and thelyingramounts approximate fair values or they agaple on demand.

CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments and related items which pid#iy subject the Company to concentrations ofliresk consist primarily of cash, cash

equivalents and trade receivables. The Compangsgliés cash and temporary cash investments withitareality institutions. At times, such
investments may be in excess of the FDIC insuréinie The Company periodically reviews its tradeeivables in determining its allowat

for doubtful accounts. At December 31, 2005 and42@@owance for doubtful receivable was $0.
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CYBERLUX CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2005 AND 2004

NOTE A-SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION:

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148¢8Anting for Stock-Based Compensation-Transitiocth Risclosure-an amendment of
SFAS 123." This statement amends SFAS No. 123,deting for Stock-Based Compensation," to provideraative methods of transition
for a voluntary charge to the fair value based wethf accounting for stockased employee compensation. In addition, thismstaimt amenc
the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123 toirequrominent disclosures in both armual and imtdmancial statements about the
method of accounting for stock-based employee cosgt®n and the effect of the method used on regadsults. The Company has chosen
to continue to account for stock-based compensasirg the intrinsic value method prescribed in ABEnion No.25 and related
interpretations. Accordingly, compensation expdnsatock options is measured as the excess, ifafthe fair market value of the
Company's stock at the date of the grant oversteecese price of the related option. The Compars/ddopted the annual disclosure
provisions of SFAS No.148 in its financial repdids the year ended December 31, 2002 and subseyears.

Had compensation costs for the Company's stockmaptieen determined based on the fair value ajrthve dates for the awards, the
Company's net loss and losses per share wouldldesreas follows (transactions involving stock opicssued to employees and Black-
Scholes model assumptions are presented in Note G):

For the year ended December 31,
2005 2004

Net (loss) income - as reported $ (9,410,657) $ 3,103, 049
Add: Total stock based employee compensation expens eas

reported under intrinsic value method (APB. No. 2 5) - 105, 000
Deduct: Total stock based employee compensation exp ense as

reported under fair value based method (SFAS No. 123) (830,400) (658, 800)
Net (loss) income - Pro Forma $ (10,241,057) $ 2,549, 249
Net (loss) income attributable to common stockh olders - Proforma $ (10,241,057) $ 2,549, 249
(Loss) Income per share - as reported - basic (Note J) $ 0.17) $ 0 .19
(Loss) Income per share - as reported - diluted (No te J) $ 0.17) $ 0 .06
(Loss) Income per share - proforma - basic $ (0.19) % 0 .15
(Loss) Income per share - proforma - diluted $ (0.19) % 0 .05

On December 16, 2004, the Financial Accounting &ieas Board (FASB) issued FASB Statement No. 128®Rded 2004), "Share-Based
Payment" which is a revision of FASB Statement NeB, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation"tedteent 123R supersedes APB
opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Hayges", and amends FASB Statement No. 95, "Stateai€Cash Flows". Generally, the
approach in Statement 123R is similar to the apira@scribed in Statement 123. However, Staten#3R Tequires all share-based
payments to employees, including grants of empl@yeek options, to be recognized in the incomeestant based on their fair values. Pro-
forma disclosure is no longer an alternative. OnilAg!l, 2005, the SEC amended the effective datb@provisions of this statement. The
effect of this amendment by the SEC is that the amy will have to comply with Statement 123R and the Fair Value based method of
accounting no later than the first quarter of 2006.

F-9



CYBERLUX CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2005 AND 2004

NOTE A-SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company follows Statement of Financial AccoumtStandards No.130, Disclosures About Segmerda &nterprise and Related
Information. The Company operates as a single segamal will evaluate additional segment disclogeruirements as it expands its
operations.

INCOME TAXES

The Company follows Statement of Financial Accaumtstandard No.109, Accounting for Income TaxesAG&No0.109) for recording the
provision for income taxes. Deferred tax assetsliahdities are computed based upon the differdmeteveen the financial statement and
income tax basis of assets and liabilities usimgethacted marginal tax rate applicable when tledeglasset or liability is expected to be
realized or settled. Deferred income tax expenségioefits are based on the changes in the asBability during each period. If available
evidence suggests that it is more likely than hat some portion or all of the deferred tax ass@tsiot be realized, a valuation allowance is
required to reduce the deferred tax assets tortfweiat that is more likely than not to be realiZédture changes in such valuation allowance
are included in the provision for deferred incomeets in the period of change. Deferred income ten@garise from temporary differences
resulting from income and expense items reportefifancial accounting and tax purposes in diffeqmariods. Deferred taxes are classified
as current or non-current, depending on the claasibn of assets and liabilities to which theyatel Deferred taxes arising from temporary
differences that are not related to an asset bititiaare classified as current or non-currenteleging on the periods in which the temporary
differences are expected to reverse 26.

PATENTS

During the year ended December 31, 2005, the Coynpamagement preformed an evaluation of its intengbsets (Patents) for purposes of
determining the implied fair value of the asset®@tember 31, 2005. The test indicated that therded remaining book value of its patens
exceeded its fair value, as determined by discaucash flows. As a result, upon completion of theeasment, management recorded a non-
cash impairment charge of $30,544, net of tax,000& per share during the year ended Decembel0B5, 1 reduce the carrying value of the
patents to $ 0. Considerable management judgemeeciessary to estimate the fair value. Accordiregyual results could vary significantly
from management's estimates.

RECENT PRONOUNCEMENTS

In March 2005, the FASB issued FASB InterpretafieiN) No. 47, "Accounting for Conditional Asset Retment Obligations, an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143," whichuiees an entity to recognize a liability for therfvalue of a conditional asset retirement
obligation when incurred if the liability's fair kee can be reasonably estimated. The Company isresfito adopt the provisions of FIN 47
later than the first quarter of fiscal 2006. Thax@pany does not expect the adoption of this Intéaficn to have a material impact on its
consolidated financial position, results of opanasi or cash flows.
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CYBERLUX CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2005 AND 2004

NOTE A-SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
RECENT PRONOUNCEMENTS (CONTINUED)

In May 2005 the FASB issued Statement of Finanstounting Standards (SFAS) No. 154, "Accountin@fies and Error Corrections, a
replacement of APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statarmn 3." SFAS 154 requires retrospective applaratd prior periods' financial
statements for changes in accounting principlesssiit is impracticable to determine either théguespecific effects or the cumulative effect
of the change. SFAS 154 also requires that retotisggeapplication of a change in accounting priteipe limited to the direct effects of the
change. Indirect effects of a change in accourmciple, such as a change in non-discretionagfitesharing payments resulting from an
accounting change, should be recognized in thegefi the accounting change. SFAS 154 also reqthadsa change in depreciation,
amortization, or depletion method for long-livednAfinancial assets be accounted for as a changecimunting estimate effected by a change
in accounting principle. SFAS 154 is effective &mcounting changes and corrections of errors nraflsdal years beginning after December
15, 2005. Early adoption is permitted for accouptthanges and corrections of errors made in figeals beginning after the date this
Statement is issued. The Company does not expeeidhption of this SFAS to have a material impact®consolidated financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.

On February 16, 2006 the Financial Accounting Stansl Board (FASB) issued SFAS 155, "AccountingGertain Hybrid Instruments,”
which amends SFAS 133, "Accounting for Derivatiasttuments and Hedging Activities," and SFAS 14 counting for Transfers and
Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishmertsiabilities." SFAS 155 allows financial instrumisrthat have embedded derivatives ti
accounted for as a whole (eliminating the needftodate the derivative from its host) if the halddects to account for the whole instrument
on a fair value basis. SFAS 155 also clarifies ame&nds certain other provisions of SFAS 133 andSSE40. This statement is effective for
all financial instruments acquired or issued icdisyears beginning after September 15, 2006. Tdregany does not expect its adoption of
this new standard to have a material impact ofiriggcial position, results of operations or cashwé.

NOTE B - PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment at December 31, 20@52004 are as follows:

2005 20 04
Furniture and fixtures $ 43,974 $ 17 ,404
Office and computer equipment 33,884 14 ,569
Manufacturing equipment 103,380 103 ,380
181,238 135 ,353
Less: accumulated depreciation (118,105) (92 ,335)
$ 63,133 $ 43 ,018

During the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2{épfeciation expense charged to operations wag@&2%and $47,686, respectively.
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CYBERLUX CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2005 AND 2004

NOTE C - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities at Decarthe2005 and 2004 are as follows:

2005 2004
Accounts payable $ 657,929 $ 176,094
Accrued interest 389,569 82,136
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 22,642 3,185
Other accrued liabilities 370,375 240,648
Total $1,440,515 $ 502,063
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CYBERLUX CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2005 AND 2004

Notes payable at December 31, 2005 and 2004 dodi@ss:

10% convertible note payable, unsecured and due Sep
unpaid interest due at maturity; Note holder has th
principal together with accrued and unpaid interest
stock at a rate of $0.50 per share. The Company is
covenants

10% convertible notes payable, unsecured and due Ma
interest due at maturity; Note holder has the optio
principal together with accrued and unpaid interest
stock at a rate of $0.50 per share. The Company is
covenants

10% convertible debenture, due two years from the d
payable quarterly during the life of the note. The
Company's common stock at the lower of a) $0.72 or
three lowest intraday trading prices for the common
for twenty days before, but not including, conversi
the note holder a security interest in substantiall

and intellectual property and registration rights.

of the loan covenants (see below)

10% convertible debenture, due three years from dat
payable quarterly during the life of the note. The
Company's common stock at the lower of a) $0.03 or
three lowest intraday trading prices for the common
for twenty days before, but not including, conversi
the note holder a security interest in substantiall

and intellectual property and registration rights.

of the loan covenants (see below)

10% convertible debenture, due three years from dat
payable quarterly during the life of the note. The
Company's common stock at the lower of a) $0.6 or b
three lowest intraday trading prices for the common
for twenty days before, but not including, conversi
the note holder a security interest in substantiall

and intellectual property and registration rights.

of the loan covenents (see below)

8% convertible debenture, due three years from date
payable quarterly during the life of the note. The
Company's common stock at the lower of a) $0.10 or
three lowest intraday trading prices for the common
for twenty days before, but not including, conversi
the note holder a security interest in substantiall

and intellectual property and registration rights (

Less: current maturities

Notes payable and convertible debentures-long term

NOTE D-NOTES PAYABLE AND CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES

tember, 2003; accrued and
e option to convert note
to the Company's common
in violation of the loan
$ 2500 $ 2,
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894,201 108,
(542,783) (27,

portion $351,418 $ 80,
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CYBERLUX CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2005 AND 2004

NOTE D-NOTES PAYABLE AND CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES (CO NTINUED)

The Company entered into a Securities Purchaseefgget with four accredited investors on SeptemBeRQ04 for the issuance of an
aggregate of $1,500,000 of convertible notes ("@atilvle Notes") and attached to the ConvertibleeNatere warrants to purchase 2,250,000
shares of the Company's common stock. The Conieeftibtes accrue interest at 10% per annum, payplagerly, and are due two years
from the date of the note. The note holder hagft®n to convert any unpaid note principal to @@mpany's common stock at a rate of the
lower of a) $0.72 or b) 50% of the average of tiree lowest intraday trading prices for the commsimtk on a principal market for the 20
trading days before, but not including, conversiate.

As of December 31, 2005, the Company issued tostove of the Convertible Notes a total amount 68Q,000 in exchange for net proce
of $1,186,281. The proceeds that the Company redeiere net of prepaid interest of $50,000 andedléees and costs of $263,719.

This transaction, to the extent that it is to biisfiad with common stock of the Company would nalimbe included as equity obligations.
However, in the instant case, due to the indeteatainumber of shares which might be issued unaeerttbedded convertible host debt
conversion feature, the Company is required torceadiability relating to both the detachable veautis and embedded convertible feature of
the notes payable (included in the liabilities ddexivative liability)".

The Company entered into a Securities Purchaseefgget with four accredited investors on April 2803 for the issuance of an aggregate
of $1,500,000 of convertible notes ("Convertiblet®&s3) and attached to the Convertible Notes wemants to purchase 25,000,000 share
the Company's common stock. The Convertible Natesua interest at 10% per annum, payable quartnly,are due three years from the
date of the note. The note holder has the opti@otwert any unpaid note principal to the Compaocgtamon stock at a rate of the lower ¢
$0.03 or b) 50% of the average of the three lowesiday trading prices for the common stock omiagipal market for the 20 trading days
before, but not including, conversion date.

As of December 31, 2005, the Company issued tcshove of the Convertible Notes a total amount g68Q,000 in exchange for total
proceeds of $1,352,067. The proceeds that the Quymeaeived were net of prepaid interest of $72/@RBesenting the first eight month's
interest and related fees and costs of $75,000.

This transaction, to the extent that it is to biisfiad with common stock of the Company would nali;mbe included as equity obligations.
However, in the instant case, due to the indeteatainumber of shares which might be issued unaeerttbedded convertible host debt
conversion feature, the Company is required torceadiability relating to both the detachable veautis and embedded convertible feature of
the notes payable (included in the liabilities dderivative liability".

The Company entered into a Securities Purchaseefgget with four accredited investors on October2205 for the issuance of $800,00(
convertible notes ("Convertible Notes") and attacteethe Convertible Notes were warrants to purel&i0,000 shares of the Company's
common stock. The Convertible Note accrues int&e$0% per annum, payable quarterly, and arelthee tyears from the date of the note.
The note holder has the option to convert any whpate principal to the Company's common stockrateof the lower of a) $0.06 or b) 5
of the average of the three lowest intraday traginces for the common stock on a principal maf&ethe 20 trading days before, but not
including, conversion date.
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CYBERLUX CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2005 AND 2004

NOTE D-NOTES PAYABLE AND CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES (CO NTINUED)

As of December 31, 2005, the Company issued tcshove of the Convertible Notes a total amount af3800 in exchange for total proceeds
of $775,000. The proceeds that the Company recewsed net of related fees and costs of $25,000.

This transaction, to the extent that it is to bisséad with common stock of the Company would nalimbe included as equity obligations.
However, in the instant case, due to the indeteatainumber of shares which might be issued unaeerttbedded convertible host debt
conversion feature, the Company is required torceadiability relating to both the detachable veautis and embedded convertible feature of
the notes payable (included in the liabilities ddexivative liability").

The Company entered into a Securities Purchaseeftggat with four accredited investors on DecembeR@85 for the issuance of $700,000
of convertible notes ("Convertible Notes") and eltied to the Convertible Notes were warrants tolmse 700,000 shares of the Company's
common stock. The Convertible Note accrues intere8% per annum, payable quarterly, and are dee ears from the date of the note.
The note holder has the option to convert any whpate principal to the Company's common stockrateof the lower of a) $0.10 or b) 3

of the average of the three lowest intraday traginces for the common stock on a principal maf&ethe 20 trading days before, but not
including, conversion date.

As of December 31, 2005, the Company issued tcshove of the Convertible Notes a total amount af@00 in exchange for total proceeds
of $675,000. The proceeds that the Company recewsed net of related fees and costs of $25,000.

These transactions, to the extent that it is tedirsfied with common stock of the Company wouldmally be included as equity obligations.
However, in the instant case, due to the indetaatainumber of shares which might be issued unaeerttbedded convertible host debt
conversion feature, the Company is required torceadiability relating to both the detachable veauts and embedded convertible feature of
the notes payable (included in the liabilities ddexivative liability").

The accompanying financial statements comply witttent requirements relating to warrants and eméedkrivatives as described in FAS
133, EITF 98-5 and 00-27, and APB 14 as follows:

o The Company allocated the proceeds received kate@nvertible debt and detachable warrants bgsed the relative fair market values
on the dates the proceeds were received.

0 Subsequent to the initial recording, the increaghe fair value of the detachable warrants, mheiteed under the Black-Scholes option
pricing formula and the increase in the intrinsidue of the embedded derivative in the converstatuire of the convertible debentures are
accrued as adjustments to the liabilities at Deeer8h, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

0 The expense relating to the increase in thevidire of the Company's stock reflected in the ckanghe fair value of the warrants and
derivatives (noted above) is included as an otherprehensive income item of an unrealized gaiss brising from convertible financing
on the Company's balance sheet.

o Accreted principal of $866,698 and $80,822 aBedfember 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
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CYBERLUX CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2005 AND 2004

NOTE D-NOTES PAYABLE AND CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES (CO NTINUED)

The following table summarizes the various comptmenthe convertible debentures as of Decembe2@15 and 2004:

2005 2004
Convertible debentures $ 894,201 $ 108,322
Warrant liability 2,013,188 131,511
Derivative liability 6,809,449 1,490,576
9,716,835 1,730,409

Cumulative adjustment of derivative and warrant lia bility to fair value (4,322,637) (122,087)
Cumulative unrealized loss related to conversion of convertible note to

common shares charged to interest expense (565,539)  (144,931)
Cumulative accretion of principal related to conver tible debentures (866,701) (80,822)
Total convertible debentures: $3,961,961 $ 1,382,569

NOTE E-WARRANT LIABILITY

Total warrant liability as of December 31, 2005 &084 is comprised of the following:

2005 2004
Fair value of warrants relating to convertible debe ntures $2,013,188 $ 131,511
Fair value of warrants relating to preferred stock- classA 1,147,334 906,419
Fair value of other outstanding warrants 191,504 147,315
Total $3,352,026 $1,185,245

NOTE F -STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY
SERIES A CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK
The Company has also authorized 5,000,000 sharfesetdrred Stock, with a par value of $.001 peresha

On December 30, 2003, the Company filed a Cert#icd Designation creating a Series A Convertibiefétred Stock classification for 200
shares.

In December, 2003, the Company issued 155 shaits ®ries A Preferred stock, valued at $5,000spare. The stock has a stated value of
$5,000 per share and a conversion price of $0.18l@re and warrants to purchase an aggregatesid,800 shares of our common stock.

In May, 2004, the Company issued 15.861 sharets &fdries A Preferred stock , valued at $5,00Gpare. The stock has a stated value of
$5,000 per share and a conversion price of $0.18h@e and warrants to purchase an aggregaté@d,000 shares of our common stock.

The Series A Preferred stated conversion priceXd fer shares is subject to certain anti-dultimvgions in the event the Company issues
shares fo its common stock or common stock equitslaelow the stated conversion price. Changdsetadnversion price are charged to
operations and included in unrealized gain (loskgting to adjustment of derivative and warrartility to fair value of underlying securities.

As of December 31, 2004, 7 of the Series A Prefesteareholders exercised the conversion right aokdamged 19 shares of Series A
Preferred for 950,000 shares of the Company's camstoxk.

As of December 31, 2005, 20 of the Series A Prefeshareholders exercised the conversion righeaokanged 92 shares of Series A
Preferred for 4,600,000 shares of the Company'sreamstock.
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CYBERLUX CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2005 AND 2004

NOTE F -STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY (CONTINUED)

The holders of the Series A Preferred shall hageitiht to vote, separately as a single classnageting of the holders of the Series A
Preferred or by such holders' written consent engtannual or special meeting of the stockholdéthe Corporation on any of the following
matters: (i) the creation, authorization, or issigaaf any class or series of shares ranking onity peith or senior to the Series A Preferred
with respect to dividends or upon the liquidatidissolution, or winding up of the Corporation, giiflany agreement or other corporate
action which would adversely affect the powershtsg or preferences of the holders of the Seri€seferred.

The holders of record of the Series A Preferred sleaentitled to receive cumulative dividendshat tate of twelve percent per annum (12%)
on the face value ($5,000.00 per share) when dfeandeclared by the Board of Directors, if evérdividends, when paid, shall be payable
in cash, or at the option of the Company , in shafdhe Company's common stock. Dividends on shafréhe Series A Preferred that have
not been redeemed shall be payable quarterly @aesywhen, if and as declared by the Board ofdiirs, if ever, on a semi-annual basis. No
dividend or distribution other than a dividend @tdbution paid in Common Stock or in any othemipr stock shall be declared or paid or set
aside for payment on the Common Stock or on angrqgtnior stock unless full cumulative dividendsalhoutstanding shares of the Series A
Preferred shall have been declared and paid. Tdieskends are not recorded until declared by thex@any. As of the year ended December
31, 2005, $ -0- in dividends were accumulated.

Upon any liquidation, dissolution or winding uptbg Corporation, whether voluntary or involuntaapd after payment of any senior
liquidation preferences of any series of Prefe8tatk and before any distribution or payment is enaith respect to any Common Stock,
holders of each share of the Series A Preferrelll lsh&ntitled to be paid an amount equal in theatgr of (a) the face value denominated
thereon subject to adjustment for stock splits;lsttividends, reorganizations, reclassificatiomtbrer similar events (the "Adjusted Face
Value") plus, in the case of each share, an amequnl to all dividends accrued or declared but ithfheereon, computed to the date payment
thereof is made available, or (b) such amount paresof the Series A Preferred immediately prioguoh liquidation, dissolution or winding
up, or (c) the liquidation preference of $5,0000@0 share, and the holders of the Series A Prefatrall not be entitled to any further
payment, such amount payable with respect to thesSA Preferred being sometimes referred to a$lilggidation Payments.”

Because the Series A Shares include a redemptidumréethat is outside of the control of the Compang the stated conversion price is
subject to reset, the Company has classified thessA Shares outside of stockholders' equity toatance with Emerging Issues Task Fc
("EITF") Topic D-98, "Classification and Measurermeh Redeemable Securities." In accordance withFETopic D-98, the fair value at date
of issuance was recorded outside of stockholdgustyein the accompanying balance sheet. Dividemdthe Series A Shares are reflected
reduction of net income (loss) attributable to camnmtockholders.

In connection with the issuance of the Series AdPred and related warrants, the holders were gdacgrtain registration rights in which the
Company agreed to timely file a registration stagetro register the common shares and the shadeslyimg the warrants, obtain
effectiveness of the registration statement bySEE within ninetyfive (95) days of December 31, 2003, and maintaneffectiveness of tr
registration statement for a preset time therealftethe event the Company fails to timely perfarnder the registration rights agreement, the
Company agrees to pay the holders of the SerieefeiPed liquidated damages in an amount equalsh bf the aggregate amount invested
by the holders for each 30-day period or pro ratahy portion thereof following the date by whitle registration statement should have
been effective. The initial registration statemeas filed and declared effective by the SEC withia allowed time , however the Company
has not maintained the effectiveness of the registr statement to date. Accordingly, the Compasyed 203,867 shares of common sto«
liquidated damages on December 10, 2004. The Coyripasinot been required to pay any further lig@datamages in connection with the
filing or on-going effectiveness of the registratistatement.
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CYBERLUX CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2005 AND 2004

NOTE F -STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY (CONTINUED)

;I'he Company is required to record a liability rielgtto the detachable warrants as described in F385 EITF 98-5 and 00-27, and APB 14.
As such:

0 Subsequent to the initial recording, the increaghe fair value of the detachable warrants, meiteed under the Black-Scholes option
pricing formula, are accrued as adjustments tdigidities at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respelti

0 The expense relating to the increase in thevidire of the Company's stock reflected in the ckhanghe fair value of the warrants noted
above) is included as an other comprehensive indgtameof an unrealized gain or loss arising fromartible financing on the Company's
balance sheet.

The fair value of the detachable warrants as ofelbdaer 31, 2005 and 2004 were as follows:

2005 2004

Fair value of warrants relating to issuance of
convertible preferred stock: $1 ,147,334 $906,419

The Company recorded an Unrealized Gain (Lossherchange in fair value of these detachable warmafr$(240,915) and $5,092,521 for
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

SERIES B CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK

On February 19, 2004, the Company filed a Certiéicd Designation creating a Series B Convertibkfd?red Stock classification for
800,000 shares.

In January, 2004, the Company issued 800,000 sbéiesSeries B Preferred in lieu of certain aectuimanagement service fees payable and
notes payable including interest payable theretalitg $800,000 to officers of the company. Thersbaf the Series B Preferred are non
voting and convertible, at the option of the holdeto common shares at $0.10 per share per shiaesshares issued were valued at $1.00 pe
share, which represented the fair value of the comstock the shares are convertible into. In conmeevith the transaction, the Company
recorded a beneficial conversion discount of $800,0preferred dividend relating to the issuancthefconvertible preferred stock. None of
the Series B Preferred shareholders have exentisa@dconversion right and there are 800,000 shafr&sries B Preferred shares issued and
outstanding at December 31, 2005.

The holders of the Series B Preferred shall hageight to vote, separately as a single classnateting of the holders of the Series B
Preferred or by such holders' written consent engtannual or special meeting of the stockholdéthe Corporation on any of the following
matters: (i) the creation, authorization, or issgaaof any class or series of shares ranking onity péth or senior to the Series B Preferred
with respect to dividends or upon the liquidatidissolution, or winding up of the Corporation, giiflany agreement or other corporate
action which would adversely affect the powershtsg or preferences of the holders of the Seri€seferred.

The holders of record of the Series B Preferredl bleaentitled to receive cumulative dividendsta tate of twelve percent per annum (12%)
on the face value ($1.00 per share) when, if ardkakared by the Board of Directors, if ever. Allidends, when paid, shall be payable in
cash, or at the option of the Company , in shaféiseoCompany's common stock. Dividends on shafréisecSeries B Preferred that have not
been redeemed shall be payable quarterly in arrelien, if and as declared by the Board of Direstirever, on a semi-annual basis. No
dividend or distribution other than a dividend @tdbution paid in Common Stock or in any othemipr stock shall be declared or paid or set
aside for payment on the Common Stock or on angrgthior stock unless full cumulative dividendsalhoutstanding shares of the Series B
Preferred shall have been declared and paid. Tdieskends are not recorded until declared by then@any. For the year ended December
31, 2005 $ 192,000 in dividends were accumulated.
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DECEMBER 31, 2005 AND 2004

NOTE F -STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY (CONTINUED)

Upon any liquidation, dissolution or winding uptbg Corporation, whether voluntary or involuntaapd after payment of any senior
liquidation preferences of any series of Prefe8tatk and before any distribution or payment is enaith respect to any Common Stock,
holders of each share of the Series B Preferrdiitshantitled to be paid an amount equal in theatgr of (a) the face value denominated
thereon subject to adjustment for stock splits;lsttividends, reorganizations, reclassificatiomthrer similar events (the "Adjusted Face
Value") plus, in the case of each share, an amequral to all dividends accrued or declared but ithiheereon, computed to the date payment
thereof is made available, or (b) such amount paresof the Series B Preferred immediately pricsuoh liquidation, dissolution or winding
up, or (c) the liquidation preference of $1.00 sleare, and the holders of the Series B Preferraltirsht be entitled to any further payment,
such amount payable with respect to the SerieseBRed being sometimes referred to as the "LididgddPayments."

COMMON STOCK

The Company has authorized 300,000,000 sharesmohon stock, with a par value of $.001 per shareofA3ecember 31, 2005 and 2004,
the Company has 75,608,334 and 23,770,233 shatesdignd outstanding, respectively.

During the three months ended March 31, 2005, msldenverted 38.5 shares of preferred stock - Gldaso 1,925,000 shares of common
stock. Each share of preferred stock is convertitite 50,000 shares of common stock.

In January, 2005, the Company issued 1,035,22Esludrits common stock at $0.0248 per share onarsion of notes payable.
In January, 2005, the Company issued 1,035,22Esludiits common stock at $0.0135 per share onagsion of notes payable.
In February, 2005, the Company issued 1,035,22feshad its common stock at $0.00883 per share amazsion of notes payable.
In March, 2005, the Company issued 1,035,221 sladrigs common stock at $0.01358 per share on asiofe of notes payable.
In March, 2005, the Company issued 1,035,221 shafriés common stock at $0.00983 per share on asioe of notes payable.

During the three months ended June 30, 2005, hotmeverted 26.5 shares of preferred stock - Glasso 1,325,000 shares of common
stock. Each share of preferred stock is convertitite 50,000 shares of common stock

In April, 2005, the Company issued 800,000 shaféts @ommon stock at $0.03 per share in exchaagesdrvices.

In April, 2005, the Company issued 1,035,221 shafés common stock at $0.0118 per share on camweiof notes payable.
In April, 2005, the Company issued 1,035,221 shaféts common stock at $0.011 per share on comwe notes payable.
In May, 2005, the Company issued 1,035,221 shdriégs common stock at $0.0108 per share on conwersi notes payable.
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NOTE F -STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY (CONTINUED)

COMMON STOCK (CONTINUED)

In May, 2005, the Company issued 1,600,000 shdriéss common stock at $0.0105 per share on conversi notes payable.
In May, 2005, the Company issued 1,100,000 shdriégs common stock at $0.0103 per share on conwersi notes payable.
In May, 2005, the Company issued 1,700,000 shdriéss common stock at $0.0088 per share on conversi notes payable.
In May, 2005, the Company issued 1,700,000 shdriégs common stock at $0.0085 per share on conwersi notes payable.
In May, 2005, the Company issued 3,400,000 shdriéss common stock at $0.0083 per share on conversi notes payable.
In June, 2005, the Company issued 250,000 shalitsafmmon stock at $0.02 per share in exchangsefwices.

In June, 2005, the Company issued 6,800,000 sbaresscommon stock at $0.0083 per share on coied notes payable.
In June, 2005, the Company issued 2,400,000 sbaresscommon stock at $0.0092 per share on coiomes notes payable.
In June, 2005, the Company issued 7,900,000 sbarsscommon stock at $0.0085 per share on cored notes payable.
In July, 2005, the Company issued 9,573,000 shariés common stock at $0.0085 per share on coioref notes payable.
In August, 2005, the Company issued 1,000,000 stafrits common stock at $0.097 per share in exgphdor services.

During the three months ended September 30, 2@8ets converted 20.5 shares of preferred stods<CA into 1,025,000 shares of
common stock. Each share of preferred stock isenitne into 50,000 shares of common stock.

In October, 2005, the Company issued 400,000 sludiiesscommon stock at $0.07 per share in exchémgservices.
In December, 2005, the Company issued 333,333 sloaitss common stock at $0.091 per share in exghdor services.

During the three months ended December 31, 2008etsoconverted 6.5 shares of preferred stock s€Aainto 325,000 shares of common
stock at. Each share of preferred stock is corblerinto 50,000 shares of common stock.
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NOTE G -STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS

CLASS A WARRANTS

The following table summarizes the changes in wasrautstanding and the related prices for theeshafrthe Company's common stock
issued to shareholders at December 31,2005.

Warrants Outstanding Warrants Exercisable
Weighted Average Weighted Weighted
Exercise Number  Remaining Contractual Average Number Average
Prices  Outstanding Life (years) Ex ercise Price Exercisable Exercise Price
$ 0.03 25,000,000 5% 0.03 25,000,000 $ 0.03
0.10 891,500 5 0.10 891,500 0.10
0.15 699,500 5 0.15 699,500 0.15
0.20 1,845,000 3 0.20 1,845,000 0.20
0.25 8,751,564 2 0.25 8,751,564 0.25
0.50 2,600,000 5 0.50 2,600,000 0.50
1.05 8,643,064 2 1.05 8,643,064 1.05
48,430,628 385 $ 0.29 48,430,628 $ 0.29

Transactions involving the Company's warrant issgaare summarized as follows:

Number of W eighted Average

Shares P rice Per Share
Outstanding at December 31, 2003 15,895,000 $ 0.54
Granted 12,156,128 0.39
Exercised (851,000) (0.25)
Canceled or expired (3,919,000) (0.25)
Outstanding at December 31, 2004 23,281,128 $ 0.58
Granted 26,499,500 0.03
Exercised - --
Canceled or expired (1,350,000) (0.25)

Outstanding at December 31, 2005 48,430,628 $ 0 .29

Warrants granted during the period ended Decembe2@)5 totaling 26,499,500 were issued in conoaatiith debt financing. The warrants
are exercisable until five years after the datssiance at a purchase price of $0.03 per sha2®,600,000 warrants, $0.10 per share on
800,000 warrants and $0.15 per share on 699,50@mtar

F-21



CYBERLUX CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2005 AND 2004

NOTE G -STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS (CONTINUED)

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS

The following table summarizes the changes in ogtioutstanding and the related prices for the shafrthe Company's common stock iss
to employees of the Company under a non-qualifragleyee stock option plan.

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted Average Weighte d Weighted

Remaining Average Average
Exercise Number  Contractual life Exercis e Number Exercise

Prices  Outstanding (Years) Price Exercisable Price
$0.2125 2,000,000 4 $0.212 5 2,000,000 $0.2125
0.2125 2,000,000 5 0.212 5 2,000,000 0.2125
0.10 12,000,000 6 0.1 0 12,000,000 0.10
0.0295 17,580,000 7.5 0.029 5 17,580,000 0.0295
33,580,000 6.6 $ 0.07 6 33,580,000 $ 0.076

Transactions involving stock options issued to exygés are summarized as follows:

Weighted Average

Number of Shares Price Per Share
Outstanding at December 31, 2003 2,000,000 $ 0.2125
Granted 2,000,000 $ 0.2125
Exercised - -
Canceled or expired -- --
Outstanding at December 31, 2004 4,000,000 $ 0.2125
Granted 29,580,000 $ 0.058
Exercised - -
Canceled or expired -- --
Outstanding at December 31, 2005 33,580,000 $ 0.076

The weighted-average fair value of stock optiorantgd to employees during the year ended Decembh@085 and 2004 and the weighted-
average significant assumptions used to deterrhimeetfair values, using a Black-Scholes optionipgienodel are as follows:

For the years
ended December 31,
2005 2004
Significant assumptions (weighted-average):
Risk-free interest rate at grant date 2 % 2%
Expected stock price volatility 255 % 149%
Expected dividend payout -- --
Expected option life-years (a) 7 6

(a)The expected option life is based on contraciyplration dates.
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NOTE G -STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS (CONTINUED)

If the Company recognized compensation cost fostbek options and warrants for the non-qualifietbkyee stock option plan in
accordance with SF AS No0.123, the Company's pradanet loss and net loss per share (basic) wowid heen $(10,469,042 ) and $( 0.18)
for the year ended December 31, 2005 and net inafi$2,030,718 and $0.04 for the year ended DeceBthe2004, respectively.

NOTE H -RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company incurred management fees to its offit@aling $0 and $445,9970 during the years eillmber 31, 2005 and December
31, 2004, respectively. Unpaid management feeseggte $ 0 and $0 as of December 31, 2004 and 28§8:ctively. In May, 2004 the
Board of Directors converted $723,670 in unpaid agement fees to Preferred Class B shares of thep@onat a rate of $1.00 per preferred
share. The Company also issued notes payableitersfin the amount of $283,835 for the balancéhefunpaid management fees.

From time to time, the Company's principal offickesre advanced funds to the Company for workingt@gpurposes in the form of
unsecured promissory notes, accruing interest%t i@ annum. As of December 31, 2005 and 2004dtence due to the officers was
$366,595 and $399,080, respectively.

NOTE | -COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Consulting Agreements

The Company has consulting agreements with outsid&ractors, certain of whom are also Company stoiclers. The Agreements are
generally for a term of 12 months from inceptionl aenewable automatically from year to year un&tger the Company or Consultant
terminates such engagement by written notice.

Operating Lease Commitments

The Company leases office space in Durham, NCfareaear lease expiring April, 2008 for an annzedl rent payment of $43,127.
Additionally the Company leases warehouse spa@rannth to month basis for $550 per month. At Ddmem31, 2005, schedule of the
future minimum lease payments is as follows:

2006 $43,127
2007 43,127
2008 14,376
2009 -
2010 -

Litigation

The Company is subject to other legal proceedingiscéaims, which arise in the ordinary course @bitisiness. Although occasional adverse
decisions or settlements may occur, the Comparngues that the final disposition of such mattersuith not have a material adverse effec
its financial position, results of operations quiidity. Listed below is a brief description of kmg litigation:

On May 17, 2005, Zykronix, Inc., a Colorado corgmna, filed a complaint against us and our Predidgiark Schmidt, in the District Court,
City and County of Denver, State of Colorado (Qdse O5CV3704) claiming damages in the amount ofl$243.75 and costs for breach of
contract, unjust enrichment and fraud by Mark SchinWe previously entered into a contract with Zykik for them to produce prototypes
for several of our new products, which we belidweytnever satisfactorily completed.

On January 26, 2006, the parties signed a MutukglaRe and Settlement Agreement amd StipulatioDifemissal with Prejudice. Under the
terms of the Mutual Release and Settlement, we gkdonix $50,000 and Zykronix returned our profugg and design files.

On February 6, 2006, the Court entered an Orddbigmissal with Prejudice, with Reservation of Lied Jurisdiction fpr the purpose of
enforcing the Mutual Release and Settlement Agreeniée terms of the Mutual Release and SettlerAgreement have been met to the
satisfaction of both parties.
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NOTE | -COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)
Litigation (continued)

On July 27, 2005, Alliance Care Services, Inc.a/lliance Advisors, a New York corporation, filaccomplaint against us in the Supreme
Court of the State of New York, County of New Yodkaiming damages in the amount of not less th&@9&®O0 and costs for breach of
contract, breach of duty of good faith and fairlafgpand unjust enrichment. We filed our answeiQmtober 4, 2005 denying all claims. This
case is currently in discovery. We believe thairtblaims are without merit and we intend to vigasty defend these claims.

On October 21, 2005, Greenfield Capital Partner€ filed a statement of claim against us in arbitrabefore the National Association of
Securities Dealers, Inc. Greenfield claims damagescosts in the amount of $107,000 for breacloofract, fraud, fraudulent concealment
and misrepresentation. We believe that their claneswithout merit and we intend to vigorously aef¢hese claims.

On April 18, 2001, we filed a civil complaint agatrLight Technology, Inc., Ervin J. Rachwal, Safgkt Industries, LLC a/k/a JFER
Innovations Group, LLC, James Meyer and John Flgralteging fraud, breach of contract, monies lerisappropriation of trade secrets,
conspiracy and sought injunctive relief againstdb&endants to prevent them from misappropriatiade secrets as well as to recover
monetary damages On May 11, 2001, the Court gramtethporary injunction against the DefendantsJ@re 5, 2001, the Defendants filed
their Answer denying the allegations of the Commpland filed a counterclaim alleging fraud, viatatiof Trade Secret Act, breach of conti
and money lent.

On January 18, 2002, the Court granted the Defaadsliotion to Dissolve the Injunction. On Janua8y 2002, we filed a Motion for
Rehearing or Clarification of the Motion to DisselA hearing on our Motion for Rehearing or Claation of the Motion to Dissolve was
scheduled for March 18, 2002, but was canceledéyCiourt and has not been rescheduled. In accardeitit Florida's Rules of Civil
Procedure, when a Motion to dissolve is granted,dhder is stayed and the injunction remains factfuntil the Court rules on a Motion for
Rehearing or Clarification of the Motion to DisselvT herefore, the injunction still remains in effaatil the Court rules on this Motion.

On November 17, 2005, we filed a Motion Notice aémissal based on lack of prosecution. On JanuayrP@06, the Court issued a Final
Order of Dismissal.

NOTE J- (LOSS) INCOME PER SHARE
The following table presents the computation ofidasd diluted (loss) income per share:

For the year ended December 31,

2005 2004
Net income (loss) available to common stockholders $ (9,410,657) $ 3,103,049
Basic income/(loss) per share 0.17) $ 0.19
Fully diluted income/(loss) per share $ 0.17) $ 0.06
Weighted average common shares outstanding (basic) 54,490,102 16,701,174
Weighted average common shares outstanding (fully d iluted) 211,355,239 48,201,174

As of December 31, 2005, 156,865,137 potentialesharere excluded from the shares used to calatilated loss per share as their inclus
would reduce net loss per share.

NOTE K - INCOME TAXES

The Company has adopted Financial Accounting Stalsddo. 109, which requires the recognition of defg tax liabilities and assets for the
expected future tax consequences of events thattheen included in the financial statement or é&nrns.

Under this method, deferred tax liabilities andetéssre determined based on the difference betfiresancial statements and tax basis of
assets and liabilities using enacted tax ratefféctefor the year in which the differences areeotpd to reverse. Temporary differences
between taxable income reported for financial répgmpurposes and income tax purposes are insiginifi A management estimate that at
December 31, 2005, the Company has available faré income tax purposes a net operating losy éanwvard of approximately
$18,500,000, expiring in the year 2023, that maydrd to offset future taxable income. Due to Sicgmt changes in the Company's
ownership, the future use of its existing net ofilegaosses may be limited.
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NOTE K - INCOME TAXES (CONTINUED)

The Company has provided a valuation reserve aghied$ull amount of the net operating loss bensfitce in the opinion of management
based upon the earnings history of the Compangnitore likely than not that the benefits will ros realized.

Components of deferred tax asset as of Decemb&O0BE, are as follows:

Non current:

Net operating loss carry forward $ 6,300,000
Valuation allowance (6,300,000)

Net deferred tax asset $ -

NOTE L- GOING CONCERN MATTERS

The accompanying statements have been preparedangconcern basis, which contemplates the r&#dia of assets and the satisfactiol
liabilities in the normal course of business. Aswh in the accompanying financial statements, d&3emfember 31, 2005, the Company

incurred accumulated losses of $18,641,941. Thep@onis current liabilities exceeded its currenetsby $1433,902 as of December 31,
2005. These factors among others may indicatahlkaCompany will be unable to continue as a goomgrern for a reasonable period of tir

The Company is actively pursuing additional eqfiitancing through discussions with investment basilkeend private investors. There can be
no assurance the Company will be successful ieffitst to secure additional equity financing.

If operations and cash flows continue to improvetigh these efforts, management believes that ¢timep@ny can continue to operate.
However, no assurance can be given that managesnaetitns will result in profitable operations be tresolution of its liquidity problems.

The Company's existence is dependent upon managerabitity to develop profitable operations angalee its liquidity problems.
Management anticipates the Company will attainifable status and improve its liquidity through tmntinued developing, marketing and
selling of its services and additional equity inwesnt in the Company. The accompanying financetkeshents do not include any adjustm
that might result should the Company be unabletdicue as a going concern.

NOTE M - BUSINESS CONCENTRATION

Sales to 5 major customers approximated $20,036 4r of total sales for the year ended Decembe2@05.

Purchases from the Company's 5 major suppliersoappated $418,530 or 81% of total purchases foyt#e ended December 31, 2005.
Sales to 1 major customer totaled $10,000 or 42%hfoyear ended December 31, 2004.
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NOTE N- RESTATEMENT

During 2005, it was determined the correct applicabf accounting principles had not been appliethe 2004 and 2003 accounting for
convertible debentures and detachable warrantsr@eeD above).

The original accounting for the debentures andaihethle warrants, the Company recognized an imbebdeeficial conversion feature
present in the convertible note and allocated &qroof the proceeds equal to the intrinsic valtithat feature to additional paid in capital.
Accordingly, the proceeds attributed to the commommon stock, convertible debt and warrants haea bestated to reflect the relative fair
value method.

In accordance with Accounting Principles Board Qgmin Accounting Changes (APB 20) the necessaryections to apply the accounting
principles on the aformentioned transactions aresatly reflected in the reported 2004 financidbimation. The impact to the previously
issued 2004 financial statements is as follows:

2004 fi nancial 2004 financial Account increase
statement b alance prior statement balance post (decrease ) in 2004
to rest atement restatement finan cials
Net income (loss): $ (6,825,848) $ 3,103,049 $ 9,928,897
Equity (deficit) $ (1,723,810) $ (3,887,248) $ ( 2,163,438)
Assets $ 557,341 $ 557,341 $-
Liabilities $ 2,281,151 $ 3,685,286 $ 1,404,135
Income (loss) per share-basic $ (0.41) $ 0.19 $ 0.60
Income (loss) per share-fully diluted $ (0.41) $ 0.06 $ 0.47

The resulting effects on the prior period adjusttaem 2004 cash flows by area are as follows:

Amount increase

2004 cash f low 2004 cash flow (decrease) in 2004
statement bal ance statement balance cash flow
prior to resta tement post restatement statement

Net cash from operating activities $ 1,9 54,562) $ (1,785,773) $ 168,788
Net cash from investing activities $ ( 21,859) $ (21,859) $ -
Net cash from financing activities $ 2,3 75,548 $ 2,206,760 $ (168,788)

NOTE O- SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
March 2006 Stock Purchase Agreement

To obtain funding for our ongoing operations, wéeead into a Securities Purchase Agreement withdocaredited investors on March 27,
2006, for the sale of (i) $500,000 in secured cadiite notes, and (ii) warrants to purchase 19,000 shares of our common stock.

The notes bear interest at 8%, mature three yearsthe date of issuance, and are convertibleanta&common stock, at the investors' option,
at the lower of:
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NOTE O- SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (CONTINUED)
0 $0.10; or

0 55% of the average of the three lowest intradaging prices for the common stock on the Over-Toemnter Bulletin Board for the 20
trading days before but not including the conversiate.

We have a call option under the terms of the seccoavertible notes. The call option provides uthwlie right to prepay all of the
outstanding secured convertible notes at any fmm®jided we are not in default and our stock iditrg at or below $.13 per share.
Prepayment of the notes is to be made in cash égeither (i) 125% of the outstanding principatiaatcrued interest for prepayments
occurring within 30 days following the issue datehe secured convertible notes; (ii) 135% of théstanding principal and accrued interest
for prepayments occurring between 31 and 60 ddiesafimg the issue date of the secured convertiblest and (i) 150% of the outstanding
principal and accrued interest for prepayments wtw after the 60th day following the issue daft¢he secured convertible notes.

Our right to repay the notes is exercisable orless than ten trading days prior written noticéh® holders of the secured convertible notes.
For notice purposes, a trading day is any day aclwbur common stock is traded for any period an@TC Bulletin Board. Notwithstandit
the notice of prepayment, the holders of the setooavertible notes have the right at all timesdovert all or any portion of the secured
convertible notes prior to payment of the prepaynaemount.

We also have a partial call option under the teofrthe secured convertible notes in any month iictwvthe current price of our common
stock is below $0.13. Under the terms of the plctdl option, we have the right to pay the outsiiag principal amount of the secured
convertible notes plus one-month's interest fot thanth, which will stay any conversions of thewsed convertible notes by the holders for
that month. The principal amount of the securedredible notes to be repaid is determined by digdihe then outstanding principal amount
of the notes by the maturity of the notes in montihs36.

The full principal amount of the secured convedibbtes are due upon default under the terms afsg@convertible notes. The warrants are
exercisable until seven years from the date ofisse at a purchase price of $0.10 per share. lii@dve have granted the investors a
security interest in substantially all of our assand intellectual property and registration rights

March 2006 Loan

On March 30, 2006 we entered into a financing agerd with the International Capital Group, LLC whlgy our Directors pledged 4,000,(
shares of their personal common stock as collateral loan in the amount of $152,400. The loamiearan interest rate of 4.99% payable
quarterly and has a maturity of March 31, 2009.

Conversions

On March 3, 2006 the holders of the Secured Coilerilote dated September 23, 2004 exercised apannversion and were issued
791,369 shares of common stock at a conversioe pfi§0.04 per share.

Holders of 8.38 Series A Preferred Stock were @<li®,032 shares of the Company's common stock.
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ITEM 8. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.
ITEM 8A - CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

A) EVALUATION OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURESs of December 31, 2005, the Company's managecagrnéd

out an evaluation, under the supervision of the gamy's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finan€xficer of the effectiveness of the
design and operation of the Company's system ofadigre controls and procedures pursuant to therllies and Exchange Act, Rule 13a-15
(e) and 15dt5(e) under the Exchange Act). Based upon thatatiah, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Fioih Officer concluded th:
the Company's disclosure controls and procedures mat effective, as of the date of their evaluatior the purposes of recording,
processing, summarizing and timely reporting maténformation required to be disclosed in repditezi by the Company under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Please see theestibn "Significant Deficiencies In Disclosure @ats And Procedures Or Internal
Controls" below.

B) CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROLS. There were no clgas in internal controls over financial reportihgttoccurred during the
period covered by this report that has materidfigcted, or is likely to materially effect, the Cpany's internal control over financial
reporting.

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES IN DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES OR INTERNAL CONTROLS

During our preparation of our Form 10-KSB for threay ended December 31, 2005, which did not occliirtbhe quarter ended March 31,
2006, we identified certain material weaknessegss&hmaterial weaknesses will result in the restt¢mf previously reported financial
statements. As defined by the Public Company ActingrOversight Board Auditing Standard No.2, a miataveakness is a significant
control deficiency or a combination of significarantrol deficiencies that result in there being entbran a remote likelihood that a material
misstatement in the annual or interim financiatestgents will not be prevented or detected. The§eidecies and issues include:

o During the financial reporting process, we detead that we lacked adequate accounting staff.
o Inability to timely close our books and finanai@porting requirement.

o Need for restatement of prior financial stateraexst a result of a recent SEC interpretation odaating for common stock and warrants
with registration rights under EITF 00-19.

Lack of Adequare Accounting Staff

Previously, in connection with the preparationhd books and records for this annual report on FifysdSB, we relied solely upon our Ch
Financial Officer to handle the financial accougtiAs a result of recent interpretations by the $&g§arding certain accounting standards, as
discussed below, together with an increase in asimess operations, we realized that we do not bavegh personnel that are qualified to
handle all of our accounting requirements.

Inability to Timely Close Our Books

Resulting mainly from the lack of adequate accanstaff, as discussed above, we were unable &htiohose our financial books and
records for the year ended December 31, 2005.r&sudt, we were unable to provide the requiredrmfation to our independent auditors on
a timely basis.

Restatement of Prior Financial Statements

In accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force FEIT0-19, "Accounting for Derivative Financial Instrumerihdexed To, and Potentia
Settled in the Company's Own Stock," and EITF 05-0#e Effect of a Liquidated Damages Clause omeg$tanding Financial Instrument
Subject to EITF 0@9," because the maximum potential liquidated dasdgr failure to maintain an effective registratgtatement is great
than the difference in fair values between regéstend unregistered shares, the value of the constock subject to registration should be
classified as temporary equity. Additionally, ircacdance with EITF 00-19 and the terms of the ahwearants, the fair value of the warrants
should be recorded as a liability, with an offsgjtreduction to shareholders' equity. The warrabillty is initially measured at fair value
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, amthen re-valued at each reporting date, with chaimgthe fair value reported as non-cash
charges or credits to earnings.

The SEC recently announced its interpretation efabcounting for common stock and warrants witlstegtion rights under EITF 009. The
SEC concluded that for agreements containing megish rights where significant liqguidated damagesld be required to be paid to the
holder of the instrument in the event the issuis fa maintain the effectiveness of a registrastatement for a preset time period, the
common stock subject to such liquidated damages doemeet the tests required for shareholderdtyecjassification, and accordingly must
be reflected between liabilities and shareholdsgsity in the balance sheet until the conditioressediminated. In analyzing instruments un



EITF 00-19, the SEC concluded that the likelihooghmbability related to the failure to maintain effective registration statement is not a
factor.

As a result, we have restated our financial statesnfer the year ended December 31, 2004 and eédrto restate the interim financial
statements for the quarters ended March 31, 200& 30, 2005 and September 30, 2005. We believ¢hisachange does not reflect upon
controls in place as we believe this will be a tinge restatement due to the recent interpretati@ccounting rules by the SEC in December
2005.

REMEDIATION TO OUR DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDUR ES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

In response to the significant deficiencies inioternal controls and procedures disclosed aboegpak actions during the first quarter of
2006 to correct these issues. In order to remethat&veakness resulting from our lack of adaquateunting staff, we have engaged an
independent contractor with extensive CFO-level agament and SEC reporting experience in public emies to assist in the closing
process.

In order to remediate the timely closing of our k®dn addition to the independent contractor tirathave engaged, we are in the process of
developing closing checklists delineating taskeppration responsibilities, and review responsiéditargeting specific completion dates.
checklist will provide evidentiary support of wopkrformed and reviewed. Specific checklist willdeveloped for non-quarter end months,
guarter end months, and the annual close. Theskldts will be implemented in the 2nd quarter 2@0fse process and utilized in the
preparation of the 2nd quarter 2006 Form 10-QSBsamdequent period ends.

As these changes to our internal controls and pires did not occur until after December 31, 2@@5believe these changes will be
effective for the quarter ended June 30, 2006, keweave will be unsure until they are tested at timae.

ITEM 8B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
PART IlI
ITEM 9 DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGI STRANT
DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Set forth below are the directors and executivieeif§ of the Company, their ages and positions Wéldthe Company, as follows

Name Age Position

Donald F. Evans 71 Chief Executive Officer an d Chairman of the Board of
Directors

Mark D. Schmidt 41 President, Chief Operating Officer and Director

John W. Ringo 61 Secretary, Corporate Couns el and Director

Alan H. Ninneman 62 Senior Vice President and Director

David D. Downing 56 Chief Financial Officer an d Treasurer

Directors are elected to serve until the next ahmegeting of stockholders and until their successwe elected and qualified. Currently there
are three seats on our board of directors.

Currently, our Directors are not compensated feirtkervices. Officers are elected by the BoarDiogctors and serve until their successors
are appointed by the Board of Directors. Biographiesumes of each officer and director are sé¢h foelow.

DONALD F. EVANS. Mr. Evans has been our Chief ExéaiOfficer and Chairman of the Board since Map@0Between 1979 and May
2000, Mr. Evans was the Managing Partner of Rekdactonometrics, a North Carolina based corporatidgrere Mr. Evans began an
investigative research study into the feasibilityadong-term electrochemical interim lighting sst. From June 1996 until March 1999, Mr.
Evans represented the investment interest of Reis&monometrics in Waste Reduction Products Cotjooraa privately held North Carolina
corporation Mr. Evans also served on the Boardicéd@ors of Waste Reduction Products Corporation.B¥ans graduated from the
University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill, NC withBS Degree in Economics.

MARK D. SCHMIDT. Mr. Schmidt has been our Presidedhief Operating Officer and Director since Mayp30From December 1999 until
December 2002, Mr. Schmidt was a founder and ekexaf Home Director, Inc., the IBM Home Networkilgvision spin-off company and
a public company. Mr. Schmidt is a former IBM exéee with over 15 years of consumer marketing, beiss management and venture
startup experience. Mr. Schmidt graduated Summa Caude with a Bachelor of Science Degree in Engingérom North Carolina State
University and earned an MBA Degree from the Fugahool of Business at Duke Universi



JOHN W. RINGO. Mr. Ringo has been our Secretaryp@Gmate Counsel and a Director since May 2000.#890, Mr. Ringo has been in
private practice in Marietta, GA specializing irrgorate and securities law. He is a former Stafbtey with the U. S. Securities and
Exchange Commission, a member of the Bar of thee®u@ Court of the United States, the Kentucky Bssogiation and the Georgia Bar
Association. Mr. Ringo graduated from the Universit Kentucky in Lexington, KY with a BA Degree ltournalism. Subsequently, he
received a Juris Doctor Degree from the Universiti(entucky College of Law.

ALAN H. NINNEMAN. Mr. Ninneman has been our SenWice President and a Director since May 2000. Ft®®2 until April 2000, Mr.
Ninneman was a Chief Executive Officer of City SdHte, Inc. based in Albuquerque, New Mexico. He wasgnior support analyst f
Tandem Computer, San Jose, California from 19885; senior business analyst at Apple Computgpe@imo, California from 1985 to
1987; and Director of Operations at Scorpion Tebtgies, Inc., San Jose, California. Mr. Ninnemasraded Elgin Community College,
Elgin, IL and subsequently majored in business adtration at Southern lllinois University, Carbahel IL.

DAVID D. DOWNING. Mr. Downing has been our Chiefriaincial Officer and Treasurer since May 2000. MowRing joined Marietta
Industrial Enterprises, Inc., Marietta, Ohio in Movber 1991 as its Chief Financial Officer. He wiasted to the Board of Directors of that
Company in January 1994. He has been a DirectAnudrican Business Parks, Inc., Belpre, Ohio sirrcridry 1998 and served as a director
of Agri-Cycle Products, Inc. from May 1998 until A@2001. Mr. Downing graduated from Grove City (&ge, Grove City, PA with a BA
Degree in Accounting.
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LIMITATION OF LIABILITY OF DIRECTORS

Our Articles of Incorporation, as amended, provméhe fullest extent permitted by Nevada law, divectors or officers shall not be
personally liable to us or our shareholders for a@ges for breach of such director's or officer'sdidry duty. The effect of this provision of
our Articles of Incorporation, as amended, is tm&late our rights and our shareholders (througiredtolders' derivative suits on behalf of
our company) to recover damages against a directofficer for breach of the fiduciary duty of caae a director or officer (including
breaches resulting from negligent or grossly neglidoehavior), except under certain situationsnaefiby statute. We believe that the
indemnification provisions in our Articles of Ingmration, as amended, are necessary to attracetaid qualified persons as directors and
officers.

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS.

Directors are elected to serve until the next ahmegeting of stockholders and until their succes$mve been elected and qualified. Officers
are appointed to serve until the meeting of ther8ad Directors following the next annual meetirfgstockholders and until their successors
have been elected and qualified.

No Executive Officer or Director of the Company lmeen the subject of any order, judgment, or deafegy Court of competel
jurisdiction, or any regulatory agency permanentiyemporarily enjoining, barring suspending oresthise limiting him from acting as ¢
investment advisor, underwriter, broker or deatethie securities industry, or as an affiliated perslirector or employee of an investment
company, bank, savings and loan association, arange company or from engaging in or continuing @nduct or practice in connection
with any such activity or in connection with therghiase or sale of any securities.

No Executive Officer or Director of the Company leen convicted in any criminal proceeding (exalgdraffic violations) or is the subje
of a criminal proceeding which is currently pending

No Executive Officer or Director of the Companyttie subject of any pending legal proceedii
SECTION 16(A) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMRANCE

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act 0f4128 amended (the "Exchange Act"), requires CykeZbrporation executive officers and
directors, and persons who beneficially own moemtten percent of the Company's common stockleaniitial reports of ownership and
reports of changes in ownership with the SEC. Etteewfficers, directors and greater than ten patrbeneficial owners are required by SEC
regulations to furnish Cyberlux Corporation withp@s of all Section 16(a) forms they file. Basedmp review of the copies of such forms
furnished to the Company and written representatfoom Company executive officers and directors,@lmmpany believes that during the
year ended 2005, the officers and directors filedfaheir respective Section 16(a) reports oimzety basis

AUDIT COMMITTEE

We do not have an Audit Committee, our board odctiors during 2005, performed some of the samdifirscof an Audit Committee, such
as:

recommending a firm of independent certified publicountants to audit the annual financial stateéseaviewing the independent auditors
independence, the financial statements and thdit eaport; and reviewing management's adminigiratif the system of internal accounting
controls. We do not currently have a written agdinmittee charter or similar document.
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NOMINATING COMMITTEE

We do not have a Nominating Committee or Nomina@ugnmittee Charter. Our board of directors perfatrseme of the functions
associated with a Nominating Committee. We havetetenot to have a Nominating Committee at thigtihowever, our Board of Directors
intend to continually evaluate the need for a Natiimg Committee.

CODE OF CONDUCT

On March 4, 2005, we adopted a written code of aohthat governs all of our officers, directors,@oyees and contractors. The code of
conduct relates to written standards that are redsp designed to deter wrongdoing and to promote:

(1) Honest and ethical conduct, including the ethimndling of actual or apparent conflicts of ietd between personal and professional
relationships;

(2) Full, fair, accurate, timely and understandafitelosure in reports and documents that are Viligd, or submitted to, the Commission and
in other public communications made by an issuer;

(3) Compliance with applicable governmental lawades and regulations;

(4) The prompt internal reporting of violationstb& code to an appropriate person or persons fahin the code; and
(5) Accountability for adherence to the code.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

We currently do not have a compensation committékeoboard of directors. Until a formal commitisesstablished, if at all, our entire bo
of directors will review all forms of compensatiprovided to our executive officers, directors, adtemts and employees including stock
compensation and loans.
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ITEM 10. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT

There are no compensatory plans or arrangementsding payments to be received from the Compatiiyy Kespect to any person associe
with the Company which would in any way result Byments to any such person because of his resignagitirement, or other terminatior
such person's employment with the Company or isigiaries, or any change in control of the Companya change in the person's
responsibilities following a change in control bétCompany.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The following table sets forth the cash compengsaticthe Company's newly elected executive offigard directors during of the years 2005,
2004 and 2003. The remuneration described in tile tapresents compensation received from Cyb&hnporation and does not include the
cost to the Company of benefits furnished to thmed executive officers, including premiums for tie@surance and other benefits provi

to such individual that are extended in connectiith the conduct of the Company's business. Theevaf such benefits cannot be precisely
determined, but the executive officers named belmnot receive other compensation in excess ofeger of $50,000 or 10% of such
officer's cash compensation.

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

ANNUAL COMPENSATION

Other
Annual Restricted Options LTIP
Name & Principal Salary Bonus Compen- Stock SARs  Payouts All Other
Position Year (%) (%) sation ($) Awards($) #) ($) Co mpensation
Donald F. Evans 2005 180,000 O 0 4,250,000
CEO & Chairman 2004 180,000 O 0 - 550,000
2003 180,000 O 0 700,000
John W. Ringo 2005 76,000 O 0 1,500,000
Secretary and 2004 70,500 O 0 400,000
Corporate Counsel 2003 102,000 O 0 250,000
Alan H. Ninneman 2005 76,000 O 0 1,000,000
Senior Vice President 2004 70,500 O 0 400,000
2003 102,000 O 0 250,000
Mark D. Schmidt 2005 180,000 O 0 - 4,000,000
President & COO 2004 120,000 O 0 - 650,000
2003 120,000 O - 550,000

Annual compensation began accruing in the form afiagement fees as of July 2000. The compensatiicated in the table is the
annualized amount of salary to be paid the resgedfificers in accordance with their employmeneagnents.
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OPTION/SAR GRANTS IN LAST FISCAL YEAR

NUMBER OF % OF TOTAL
SECURITIES  OPTIONS/SARS

UNDERLYING GRANTEDTO E XERCISE
OPTIONS/SARS EMPLOYEESIN O RBASE  EXPIRATION

NAME GRANTED (#) FISCAL YEAR ( $/SH) DATE

Donald F. Evans 4,250,000  35.42%  $ 0.10 /Sh 2011

John W. Ringo 1,500,000  125%  $ 0.10 /Sh 2011

Alan H. Ninneman 1,000,000 833% $ 0.10 /Sh 2011

Mark D. Schmidt 4,000,000  33.33%  $ 0.10 /Sh 2011

STOCK OPTION PLANS

We have created an Employee Stock Option Plamfmntive/retention of current key employees andramducement to employment of n
employees. The 2003 plan, which sets aside 2,00&08res of common stock for purchase by employezsmade effective by the Boarc
Directors.

On September 2, 2003, our Board approved a 20@htive Stock Option Plan, which will provide 2,0000 shares to underwrite options.

On April 8, 2004 our Board approved the 2005 InisenBtock Option Plan that provides for 12,000,8B6res to underwrite options and on
January 10, 2005, the Board approved the 2006tRéprovides for 18,000,000 shares to underwptéaos.

The stock option plans are administered directlypbyboard of directors.

Subject to the provisions of the stock option plahs board will determine who shall receive stopkions, the number of shares of common
stock that may be purchased under the optiongirtteeand manner of exercise of options and exemises.

As of March 31, 2006, there were 27,513,237 stgtlons granted under the plans that were outstgndin
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS
Donald F. Evans

On July 1, 2000, we entered into an eight-year eynmpént contract with Donald F. Evans to serve agf@Executive Officer, which was
amended on January 1, 2003. The base salary urelagteement is $180,000 per annum, plus benefits.

Alan H. Ninneman

On July 1, 2000, we entered into an eight-year eympént contract with Alan H. Ninneman to serve asi& Vice President, which was
amended on January 1, 2003. The base salary urelagteement is $102,000 per annum, plus benefits.
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John W. Ringo

On July 1, 2000, we entered into an eight-year eympént contract with John W. Ringo to serve as@&aty and Corporate Counsel, which
was amended on January 1, 2003. The base salagy tedagreement is $102,000 per annum, plus henefi

Mark D. Schmidt

On May 1, 2003, we entered into an employment eshivith Mark D. Schmidt to serve as Executive feesident and Chief Operating
Officer until June 30, 2008. The base salary utideragreement is $180,000 per annum, plus benefits.
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ITEM 11. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table presents information, to thethaf the Company's knowledge, about the benefasiadership of its common stock on
March 31, 2006 relating to the beneficial ownersifithe Company's common stock by those personkno beneficially own more than
5% of the Company's capital stock and by its doecand executive officers. The percentage of ieiakbwnership for the following table is
based on 85,428,735 shares of common stock ouistand

Beneficial ownership is determined in accordandd ttie rules of the Securities and Exchange Coniomissnd does not necessarily indicate
beneficial ownership for any other purpose. Untlese rules, beneficial ownership includes thoseeshaf common stock over which the
stockholder has sole or shared voting or investrpenter. It also includes shares of common stockttieastockholder has a right to acquire
within 60 days through the exercise of any optigarrant or other right. The percentage ownershifnefoutstanding common stock,
however, is based on the assumption, expresslyregtjoy the rules of the Securities and Exchanga@ission, that only the person or en
whose ownership is being reported has convertadrapbr warrants into shares of our common stock.

NAME AND ADDRESS NU MBER OF PERCENTAGE OF
OF OWNER TITLE OF CLASS SHARE S OWNED(1) CLASS (2)
Donald F. Evans Common Stock 16,422,784(3) 16.36%

4625 Creekstone Drive

Suite 100

Research Triangle Park
Durham, NC 27703

Mark D. Schmidt Common Stock 11,240,977(4) 11.65%
4625 Creekstone Drive

Suite 100

Research Triangle Park

Durham, NC 27703

Alan H. Ninneman Common Stock 4,516,773(5) 5.06%
4625 Creekstone Drive

Suite 100

Research Triangle Park

Durham, NC 27703

John W. Ringo Common Stock 4,574,403(6) 5.11%
4625 Creekstone Drive

Suite 100

Research Triangle Park

Durham, NC 27703

David Downing Common Stock 2,013,300(7) 2.32%
4625 Creekstone Drive

Suite 100

Research Triangle Park

Durham, NC 27703

All Officers and Directors Common Stock 38,768,237(8) 32.06%
As a Group (5 persons)

Donald F. Evans Preferred B 275,103 34.38%
Mark D. Schmidt Preferred B 101,000 12.62%
Alan H. Ninneman Preferred B 180,652 22.58%
John W. Ringo Preferred B 166,915 20.86%
David Downing Preferred B 76,330 9.54%
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* | ess than 1%.

(1) Beneficial Ownership is determined in accoraawith the rules of the Securities and Exchange f@imsion and generally includes voting
or investment power with respect to securitiesr&haf common stock subject to options or warrantsently exercisable or convertible, or
exercisable or convertible within 60 days of MaBdh 2006 are deemed outstanding for computing ¢neemtage of the person holding such
option or warrant but are not deemed outstandingdmputing the percentage of any other person.

(2) Based upon 85,428,735 shares issued and oditsgaon March 31, 2006.

(3) Includes currently exercisable options to passhl2,216,754 shares of common stock and 275hEHd8ssof Series B convertible prefer
stock convertible into 2,751,030 shares of comntooksand entitled to cast 27,510,300 votes at aegting of shareholders.

(4) Includes currently exercisable options to passh10,030,977 shares of common stock and 101k208ssof Series B convertible prefer
stock convertible into 1,010,000 shares of commooksand entitled to cast 10,100,000 votes at aegting of shareholders.

(5) Includes currently exercisable options to paseh2,060,253 shares of common stock and 180,&82sshf Series B convertible preferred
stock convertible into 1,806,520 shares of comntooksand entitled to cast 18,065,200 votes at aegting of shareholders.

(6) Includes currently exercisable options to paseh2,455,253 shares of common stock and 166,2t8ssbf Series B convertible preferred
stock convertible into 1,669,150 shares of comntooksand entitled to cast 16,691,500 votes at aegting of shareholders.

(7) Includes currently exercisable options to paseh750,000 shares of common stock and 76,330ssblaBeries B convertible preferred
stock convertible into 763,300 shares of commooksémd entitled to cast 7,633,000 votes at any imgef shareholders.

(8) Includes currently exercisable options to paseh27,513,237 shares of common stock and 800H208ssof Series B convertible prefer
stock convertible into 8,000,000 shares of comntooksand entitled to cast 80,000,000 votes at aegting of shareholders.

ITEM 12. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS

We owed certain management fees, which were fauadcsalaries for Messrs. Evans, Ninneman, RingdSaimidt consistent with
employment agreements. These fees were as fol4@9,505 to Don Evans, $243,000 to John Ringo, $2&3to0 Alan Ninneman and
$101,000 to Mark Schmidt for a total of $1,007,505addition, certain officers loaned funds to m&kchange for promissory notes. The
promissory notes included $3,000 to Don Evans,483t@ Al Ninneman and $184,830 to Dave Downing.

In 2004, we issued 800,000 shares of Series B CtiblePreferred Stock to officers and directorexthange for $723,670 of these
management fees and $76,330 of the loan from Dawenihg, on a basis of 1 share of Series B Conerieferred Stock for $1 of debt
owned. The management fees converted include $23%Byt Don Evans, $166,915 by John Ringo, $180,65dan Ninneman and $101,000
to Mark Schmidt. These shares of Series B Converkbeferred Stock have certain conversion rightssuperior voting privileges as further
described in the "Description of Securities" sattierein. The Board of Directors, exercising theisiness judgment, determined that it was
in the Company's best interest to issue sharesrnidsSB convertible preferred stock in lieu of aext management fees. The Board of
Directors determined that the terms of the transacstere as fair to the Company as any transactiwatscould have been made with
unaffiliated parties.

Currently, there are still outstanding promissooyes totaling 366,595, which include $249,350 ipaid management fees and promissory
notes to officers totaling $117,245. The unpaid aggment fees include $90,916 owed to Don Evans3882o Al Ninneman and $76,085
John Ringo. The outstanding promissory notes tice® include $3,745 to Al Ninneman, $3,000 to BEwans, $2,000 to Mark Schmidt and
$108,500 to Dave Downing. The promissory notes vigmeed to officers who lent us funds for workiragital purposes. The promissory
notes are payable on demand and accrue interastatnual rate of 12%.
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We have consulting agreements with outside comtractertain of whom are also our stockholders. 8greements are generally for a terr
12 months from inception and renewable automatidedim year to year unless either we or the coastiterminates such engagement by
written notice. None of the consultants who areahalders own 5% or more of our issued and outstgrghares of common stock.

Promissory notes were issued to certain officerséofans to the Company for working capital. Theseds are listed as payable upon demand
and accrue interest at 12% per annum. Don F. E@asd D. Downing, Mark Schmidt and Alan H. Ninnemlaaned $3,000, $108,500,

$2,000 and $3,745, respectively. The terms of &etisns in this section are as fair to the Comp@gny transactions that could have been
made with unaffiliated parties.

We have no policy regarding entering into transediwith affiliated parties.
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ITEM 13. EXHIBITS

Exhibit No. Description

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

PART IV

Articles of Incorporation, dated as
exhibit to the registration statement
Commission on December 17, 2001
reference.

Certificate of Amendment to the Artic
as of April 3, 2003, filed as an
statement on Form SB-2 filed with the
and incorporated herein by reference.

Bylaws of Cyberlux Corporation, f
registration statement on Form 10-SB
December 17, 2001 and incorporated he

Certificate of Designation of Series
an exhibit to the current report
Commission on January 8, 2004 an
reference.

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated
and among Cyberlux Corporation, AJW
Partners, LLC, AJW Offshore, Ltd.
Partners I, LLC, filed as Exhibit
Form 8-K filed with the Commission
incorporated herein by reference.

Secured Convertible Note issued to
September 23, 2004, filed as Exhibit
Form 8-K filed with the Commission
incorporated herein by reference.

Secured Convertible Note issued to A
dated September 23, 2004, filed a
report on Form 8-K filed with the Com
and incorporated herein by reference.

Secured Convertible Note issued t
September 23, 2004, filed as Exhibit
Form 8-K filed with the Commission
incorporated herein by reference.

Secured Convertible Note issued to Ne
Il, LLC, dated September 23, 2004,
current report on Form 8-K filed wit
29, 2004 and incorporated herein by r

Common Stock Purchase Warrant issued

September 23, 2004, filed as Exhibit
Form 8-K filed with the Commission
incorporated herein by reference.

Common Stock Purchase Warrant with A

dated September 23, 2004, filed a
report on Form 8-K filed with the Com
and incorporated herein by reference.

Common Stock Purchase Warrant wit
September 23, 2004, filed as Exhibit
Form 8-K filed with the Commission
incorporated herein by reference.

Common Stock Purchase Warrant with Ne

Il, LLC, dated September 23, 2004,
current report on Form 8-K filed wit
29, 2004 and incorporated herein by r

Registration Rights Agreement, dated
and among Cyberlux Corporation, AJW
Partners, LLC, AJW Offshore, Ltd.
Partners Il, LLC, filed as Exhibit 4
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of May 17, 2000, filed as an
on Form 10-SB filed with the
and incorporated herein by

les of Incorporation, dated
exhibit to the registration
Commission on April 30, 2003

iled as an exhibit to the
filed with the Commission on
rein by reference.

A Preferred Stock, filed as
on Form 8-K filed with the
d incorporated herein by

as of September 23, 2004, by
Partners, LLC, AJW Qualified
and New Millennium Capital
4.1 to the current report on

on September 29, 2004 and

AJW Offshore, Ltd., dated
4.2 to the current report on
on September 29, 2004 and

JW Qualified Partners, LLC,
s Exhibit 4.3 to the current
mission on September 29, 2004

0 AJW Partners, LLC, dated
4.4 to the current report on
on September 29, 2004 and

w Millennium Capital Partners
filed as Exhibit 4.5 to the

h the Commission on September

eference.

to AJW Offshore, Ltd., dated
4.6 to the current report on
on September 29, 2004 and

JW Qualified Partners, LLC,
s Exhibit 4.7 to the current
mission on September 29, 2004

h AJW Partners, LLC, dated
4.8 to the current report on
on September 29, 2004 and

w Millennium Capital Partners
filed as Exhibit 4.9 to the

h the Commission on September

eference.

as of September 23, 2004, by
Partners, LLC, AJW Qualified
and New Millennium Capital
.10 to the current report on



Form 8-K filed with the Commission on September 29, 2004 and
incorporated herein by reference.

411 Security Agreement, dated as of Sep tember 23, 2004, by and among
Cyberlux Corporation, AJW Partners, LLC, AJW Qualified Partners,
LLC, AJW Offshore, Ltd. and New Mill ennium Capital Partners I,
LLC, filed as Exhibit 4.11 to the cur rent report on Form 8-K filed
with the Commission on September 29, 2004 and incorporated herein

by reference.

412 Intellectual Property Security Agre ement, dated as of September
23, 2004, by and among Cyberlux Corp oration, AJW Partners, LLC,
AJW Qualified Partners, LLC, AJW Offs hore, Ltd. and New Millennium
Capital Partners IlI, LLC, filed as Exhibit 4.12 to the current
report on Form 8-K filed with the Com mission on September 29, 2004
and incorporated herein by reference.

4.13 Guaranty and Pledge Agreement, dated as of September 23, 2004, by
and among Cyberlux Corporation, AJW Partners, LLC, AJW Qualified
Partners, LLC, AJW Offshore, Ltd., Ne w Millennium Capital Partners
Il, LLC and Donald F. Evans, filed a s Exhibit 4.13 to the current
report on Form 8-K filed with the Com mission on September 29, 2004

and incorporated herein by reference.

4.14 Secured Convertible Note issued to AJW Offshore, Ltd., dated
October 20, 2004.

4.15 Secured Convertible Note issued to A JW Qualified Partners, LLC,
dated October 20, 2004.

4.16 Secured Convertible Note issued t o AJW Partners, LLC, dated
October 20, 2004.

4.17 Secured Convertible Note issued to Ne w Millennium Capital Partners
II, LLC, dated October 20, 2004.

4.18 Common Stock Purchase Warrant issued to AJW Offshore, Ltd., dated
October 20, 2004.

4.19 Common Stock Purchase Warrant with A JW Qualified Partners, LLC,
dated October 20, 2004.

4.20 Common Stock Purchase Warrant wit h AJW Partners, LLC, dated
October 20, 2004.

4.21 Common Stock Purchase Warrant with Ne w Millennium Capital Partners
II, LLC, dated October 20, 2004.

4.22 Secured Convertible Note issued to AJW Offshore, Ltd., dated
November 18, 2004.

4.23 Secured Convertible Note issued to A JW Qualified Partners, LLC,
dated November 18, 2004.

4.24 Secured Convertible Note issued t o AJW Partners, LLC, dated
November 18, 2004.

4.25 Secured Convertible Note issued to Ne w Millennium Capital Partners
II, LLC, dated November 18, 2004.

4.26 Common Stock Purchase Warrant issued to AJW Offshore, Ltd., dated
November 18, 2004.

4.27 Common Stock Purchase Warrant with A JW Qualified Partners, LLC,
dated November 18, 2004.

4.28 Common Stock Purchase Warrant wit h AJW Partners, LLC, dated
November 18, 2004.

4.29 Common Stock Purchase Warrant with Ne w Millennium Capital Partners
I, LLC, dated November 18, 2004.
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4.30 Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 22, 2005, by and
among Cyberlux Corporation, AJW P artners, LLC, AJW Qualified
Partners, LLC, AJW Offshore, Ltd. and New Millennium Capital
Partners IlI, LLC, filed as an exhib it to the current report on
Form 8-K filed with the Commissi on on April 28, 2005 and

incorporated herein by reference.

4.31 Secured Convertible Note issued to AJ W Offshore, Ltd., dated April



4.32

4.33

4.34

4.35

4.36

4.37

4.38

4.39

4.40

4.41

4.42

4.1
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4.4
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Security Agreement, dated as of Apr
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LLC, filed as an exhibit to the curr
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report on Form 8-K filed with the Com
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October 23, 2005.
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Secured Convertible Note issued t
October 23, 2005.
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32.2 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarba nes-Oxley Act of 2002 (Chief
Financial Officer).
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ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
AUDIT FEES

The aggregate fees billed for professional servieadered by Russell Bedford Stefanou Mirchand&t for the audit of the registrant's
annual financial statements and review of the firstatements included in the registrant's FOBRQEB or services that are normally
provided by the accountant in connection with statuand regulatory filings or engagements fordisgears 2005 and 2004 were $146,900
and $56,650 respectively.

AUDIT-RELATED FEES
None.

TAX FEES

None.

ALL OTHER FEES
None.

POLICY ON AUDIT COMMITTEE PRE-APPROVAL OF AUDIT AND PERMISSIBLE NON-AUDIT SERVICES OF
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

We currently do not have a designated Audit Conamjtand accordingly, our Board of Directors' polgyo pre-approve all audit and
permissible non-audit services provided by the jreaelent auditors. These services may include aaditces, audit-related services, tax
services and other services. Pre-approval is giyeravided for up to one year and any pre-apprivdetailed as to the particular service or
category of services and is generally subjectgpexific budget. The independent auditors and neamagt are required to periodically report
to our Board of Directors regarding the extentef/ges provided by the independent auditors im@atance with this pre-approval, and the
fees for the services performed to date. The Bo&Rirectors may also pre-approve particular se&wion a case-by-case basis.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regiigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on our behalf by the undersigned, theredualp authorized.

CYBERLUX CORPORATION

Dated: April 19, 2006 By: /s/ DONALD F. EVANS

Donal d F. Evans
Chi ef Executive O ficer
(Principal Executive Oficer)

Dated: April 19, 2006 By: /s/ DAVID D. DOWNI NG

Davi d D. Downi ng
Chi ef Financial Oficer
(Principal Financial Oficer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of
the registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated.

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE

/'s/ DONALD F. EVANS Chi ef Executive Oficer and April 19, 2006
-------------------- Chai rman of the Board of Directors
Donal d F. Evans

/sl MARK D. SCHM DT Presi dent, Chief Operating Oficer April 19, 2006
-------------------- and Director
Mark D. Schmi dt

/sl JOHN W RI NGO Secretary, Corporate Counsel April 19, 2006
-------------------- and Director
John W Ringo

/sl ALAN H. NI NNEMAN Seni or Vice President and Director April 19, 2006

Al an H. N nnenan
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Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF REGISTERED INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
TO: Cyberlux Corporation

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRegion Statement Nos. 333-128640, 333-131363;1390205 of Cyberlux Corporation
on Forms S-8 of our report dated March 16, 2006eagng in this Annual Report on Form 10-KSB of €sttax Corporation for the year
ended December 31, 2005.

/'s/ RUSSELL BEDFORD STEFANOU M RCHANDANI LLP
Russel | Bedford Stefanou M rchandani LLP

New Yor k, New Yor k
April 17, 2006



EXHIBIT 31.1
CYBERLUX CORPORATION
OFFICER'S CERTIFICATE PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
I, Donald F. Evans, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 1@®K$ Cyberlux Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioriny untrue statement of a material fact or dmn#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the small business issuef,amnd for, the periods presented in this
report;

4. The small business issuer's other certifyingef{s) and | are responsible for establishing mathtaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13ayHnd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finaheporting (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the smalsimess issuer and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsgdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoitge designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to $heall business issuer, including its consolidatgasidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the metin which this report is being prepared,;

(b) [Omitted pursuant to SEC Release No. 33-8238];

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the small bissirigsuer's disclosure controls and procedurep@@seénted in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure containtsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougydlis report based on such evaluation;
and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the stmadiness issuer's internal control over finangglorting that occurred during the small
business issuer's most recent fiscal quarter (ttadl ®usiness issuer's fourth fiscal quarter indagse of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the small business issuer's internal contret éinancial reporting; and

5. The small business issuer's other certifyingef{s) and | have disclosed, based on our mosntexvaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the small business issumunditors and the audit committee of the smalliess issuer's board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the smallibeiss issuer's ability to record, process, sumrmaanw report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a samiifiole in the small business issuer's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 19, 2006 /'s/ DONALD F. EVANS

Donal d F. Evans
Chi ef Executive Oficer



EXHIBIT 31.2
CYBERLUX CORPORATION
OFFICER'S CERTIFICATE PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
I, David D. Downing, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 1@®K$ Cyberlux Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioriny untrue statement of a material fact or dmn#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the small business issuef,amnd for, the periods presented in this
report;

4. The small business issuer's other certifyingef{s) and | are responsible for establishing mathtaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13ayHnd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finaheporting (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the smalsimess issuer and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsgdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoitge designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to $heall business issuer, including its consolidatgasidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the metin which this report is being prepared,;

(b) [Omitted pursuant to SEC Release No. 33-8238];

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the small bissirigsuer's disclosure controls and procedurep@@seénted in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure containtsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougydlis report based on such evaluation;
and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the stmadiness issuer's internal control over finangglorting that occurred during the small
business issuer's most recent fiscal quarter (ttadl ®usiness issuer's fourth fiscal quarter indagse of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the small business issuer's internal contret éinancial reporting; and

5. The small business issuer's other certifyingef{s) and | have disclosed, based on our mosntexvaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the small business issumunditors and the audit committee of the smalliess issuer's board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the smallibeiss issuer's ability to record, process, sumrmaanw report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a samiifiole in the small business issuer's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 19, 2006 /'s/ DAVID D. DOMI NG

Davi d D. Downi ng
Chi ef Financial Oficer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual report of Cyberluxr@oration (the "Company") on Form 10-KSB for theipe ending December 31, 2005 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioithe date hereof (the "Report"), |, Donald F. E/ahief Executive Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section 80he Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities andtzxge Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finana@aldition and result of operations of the
Company.

A signed original of this written statement reqdil®y Section 906 has been provided to Cyberlux @uapn and will be retained by
Cyberlux Corporation and furnished to the Secwsiiad Exchange Commission or its staff upon request

Date: April 19, 2006 By: /s/ DONALD F. EVANS

Donal d F. Evans
Chi ef Executive O ficer



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual report of Cyberluxr@oration (the "Company") on Form 10-KSB for theipe ending December 31, 2005 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiothe date hereof (the "Report"), |, David D. Domgyi Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section 80he Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities andtzxge Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and result of operations of the
Company.

A signed original of this written statement reqdil®y Section 906 has been provided to Cyberlux @uaipn and will be retained by
Cyberlux Corporation and furnished to the Secwgiiad Exchange Commission or its staff upon request

Date: April 19, 2006 By: /s/ DAVID D. DOANI NG

Davi d D. Downi ng
Chi ef Financial Oficer



